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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Tothe attention of General Assembly of Vakif Finansal Kiralama Anonim Sirketi
1) Opinion

We have audited the annual report of Vakif Finansal Kiralama Anonim Sirketi (“the Company") for the period between January 1,
2023 and December31,2023.

In our opinion, the financial information provided in the annual report of the Board of Directors and the discussions of the Board
of Directors on the Company's position are consistent, in all material respects, with the audited full set of financial statements and
the information obtained during the independent audit and reflects a true and fair view.

2) Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with standards on auditing issued by the Capital Markets Board of Turkey and Standards
on Auditing which is a component of the Turkish Auditing Standards published by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing
Standards Authority (POA). Our responsibilities under these Standards are described in detail in the Independent Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Independent Audit of the Annual Report section of our report. We declare that we are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Independent Auditors (Code of Ethics) issued by POA and the ethical require-
ments in the regulations issued by POA that are relevant to our audit. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accord-
ance with the Code of Ethics and regulations. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained during the independent audit
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3) Auditor's Opinion on the Full Set of Financial Statements

We have expressed a positive opinion in our auditor's report dated February 6, 2024 on the full set financial statements of the
Company for the period between January 1, 2023 and December 31, 2023.

4) Responsibility of the Board of Directors for the Annual Report

In accordance with Articles 514 and 516 of the Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102 ("TCC") and the Capital Markets Board's
("CMB") Communiqué No. II-14.1 "Communigué on the Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital Markets" ("the Commu-
niqué"), the Company management is responsible for the following in relation to the annual report

a) It shall prepare the annual activity report within the first three months following the balance sheet date and submit it to the
generalassembly.

b) The annual report is prepared in such a way that it reflects the flow of the Company's activities for that year and its financial
status in all aspects accurately, completely, straightforwardly, truthfully and honestly. In this report, the financial situation is evalu-
ated according to the financial statements. The report also clearly indicates the development of the Company and the possible
risks that the Company may face. The assessment of the Board of Directors on these issues is also included in the report.
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¢) Theannual report also includes the following

- Significant events that occurred in the Company after the end of the fiscal year,

- The Company's research and development activities,

- Financial benefits such as salaries, premiums, bonuses, allowances, travel, accommodation and representation expenses,
in-kind and cash benefits, insurances and similar guarantees paid to board members and senior executives.

While preparing the annual report, the board of directors also takes into consideration the secondary legislation regulations
made by the Ministry of Customs and Trade and relevant institutions.

5) Independent Auditor's Responsibility for the Independent Audit of the Annual Report

Our aim is to express an opinion on whether the financial information provided in the annual report and the discussions made
by the Board of Directors are consistent with the audited financial statements of the Company and the information obtained
during the independent audit and whether they reflect the truth within the framework of the provisions of the Turkish Commer-
cial Code and the Communiqué, and to prepare a report containing our opinion.

We conducted our audit in accordance with standards on auditing issued by the Capital Markets Board of Turkey and Standards
on Auditing issued by POA. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance on whether the financial information in the annual report and the discussions of the Board of
Directors are free from material misstatement and consistent with the financial statements and the information obtained during
theaudit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Emre Celik.

Gliney Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Musavirlik Anonim Sirketi
A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited

Emre Celik,
CPA
Responsible Auditor

February 27,2024
Istanbul, Turkey
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With 35 years of experience, Vakif Leasing adds value to your production and turns your opportunities
into profit while offering leasing advantages in a special and innovative way.

Vakif Leasing

Future Towards You



L > Message from the Chairman of the Board of Directors

* > Message from the General Manager

@ > General Information About the Company

> Corporate Management
Applications

() > 2023 in the World and Turkey
lill > Vakif Leasing in 2023
B > General Evaluation

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT
> AUDITOR'S REPORT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED ON 31 DECEMBER 2023

VAKIF LEASING
ANNUAL REPORT / 04

TABLE OF
CONTENTS

Members of the Board of Directors <
and their Biographies

Our Managers < X2&

Corporate Identity € Q

Declarations of Independence <

Commitment Report €

Explanations Made Within the Scope <
of Corporate Management Communiqué

Key Financial Indicators il
and Ratios < It

JCR Eurasia Rating Credit Rating Agency .
Pressrelease <

Vakif Leasing

Future Towards You



Lary Leasi
i%ﬁh Yec;l/rbg



MESSAGE FROM o

THE CHARMAN 2200002
y OF THEBOARD Q& .

OF DIRECTORS ~ .*®° - »

[ Vakif Leasing

Future Towards You



VAKIF LEASING g

ANNUAL REPORT / 2023 :

07

vV MESSAGE FROM
THE CHAIRMAN OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In 2023, our company realized 15.2% of the sector's operational
volume on its own and continued to contribute to our country’s
economy with its share. In this context, our Company, which has successfully
completed the year 2023, has increased its total assets to TL 26,233 million
and its shareholders' equity to TL 2,863 million with the strength it received
from its employees and stakeholders. Again in this period, our company
increased its net financial leasing receivables to TL 19,534
million and reached the highest profit amount of TL 1,443 million

Dear Stakeholders

2023 was a year of supply chain disruptions, the sharp rise in energy
prices caused by the Israeli-Palestinian war and interest rate cuts in the
UsS.

After inflation started to rise in global economies and reached historically
high levels, interest rate hikes, especially in developed countries, contin-
ued in 2023. However, rising interest rates also brought fears that econo-
mies would enter recession. The first half of 2023 was dominated by both
high inflation and recession concerns. However, towards the end of the
year, inflation rates started to fall. Moreover, the feared recession did not
come true. In March, the largest bank bankruptcy in the US since the
global crisis took place. With the bank bankruptcy, gold prices started to
rise as the markets' demand for safe-haven assets increased. After
OPEC+'s surprise decision to cut production at the end of March, oil
prices moved upwards. The "debt limit or debt ceiling" is the upper limit
of the amount of money that the US government can borrow to pay its
debts. After the crisis was effective throughout May, an agreement in
principle was reached at the end of the month and had a short-lived
impact on global markets. In the last quarter of the year, the war that
broke out as a result of the operation launched by Hamas against Israel
caused disruptions in the supply chain and fluctuations in commodity
prices.
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in its history.

With the effect of the revival in domestic demand and the contribu-
tion of competitive exchange rates, the year 2022

Turkey's economy grew by 4% in the first quarter of 2023 compared to
the same quarter of the previous year, ending the year with a growth
rate of 5.6%. The services sector played an important role in growth in
the first quarter of the year. In the second quarter, the growth rate was
close to the first quarter as the high inflation environment pushed
demand forward, as well as increased investments during the election
period and post-earthquake investments. In the second quarter,
household consumption once again made the largest contribution to
growth, albeit at a slightly slower pace compared to the previous
quarter. Thus, Turkish economy maintained its strong outlook in the
second quarter and grew by 3.9%, close to expectations. In the third
quarter of the year, Turkish economy grew by 5.9%, above market
expectations. Although the effects of the tightening in financial
conditions will become more evident in the last quarter and-a
slowdown is expected compared to the third quarter, the growth rate
is expected to be 4.4% or higher than the Medium Term Program
target of 4.4% in 2023, led by the contribution from the industrial
production index with the contribution of the preliminary data.

In 2023, our company realized 15.2% of the sector's operational
volume on its own and continued to contribute to our country's
economy with its share. In this context, our Company, which success-
fully completed the year 2023, increased its total assets to TL 26,233
million and its shareholders' equity to TL 2,863 million with the
strength it received from its employees and stakeholders. Again in this
period, our company increased its net financial leasing receivables to
TL 19,534 million and reached TL 1,443 million, the highest profit
amount in its history.

Having achieved great momentum in 2023 with its share in the sector,
our Company strengthened its human resources capacity and
increased their quality and quantity, and continued to contribute to
the national economy with the resources it provided to the real
economy.

On behalf of our Company, | would like to extend my gratitude to our
customers, employees and stakeholders who have contributed to the
success of our Company, which continues to increase its growth trend.

Yours sincerely,

HAZIM AKYOL
Chairman of the Board of Directors
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V' MESSAGE FROM THE
GENERAL MANAGER

Dear Stakeholders

The first half of 2023 brought more moderate economic activity, albeit
limited, compared to previous expectations on the back of falling energy
prices and the delayed recovery in the Chinese economy. However, due
to the tight monetary policies implemented to combat inflation, which
has become resilient on a global scale, economic activity remains
sluggish across the globe and is not balanced across countries. The US
Federal Reserve (Fed) raised its policy rate continuously from the first
quarter of 2022 until the end of the second quarter of 2023, while the
European Central Bank (ECB) accompanied this process with interest rate
hikes, albeit with a delay. With many countries tightening financial
conditions, the global economy is experiencing a combination of slow
growth and rigid inflation.

These developments support expectations of a moderate global
slowdown in the upcoming period. In fact, some of the frequent leading
indicators point to a weakening in economic activity. The slowdown in
the US economy in the first half of 2023 and China's chronic financial
problems in the real estate sector keep the expectations for a moderate
global slowdown strong. On the other hand, the extent to which tight
monetary policies can reduce global inflation is uncertain. Recent data
suggest that global inflation remains resilient.

Under these conditions, the global economy, which grew by 3.5 percent
in 2022, is expected to slow down to 3.0 percent in 2023 and 2.9 percent
in 2024. Having grown by 2.6 percent in 2022, advanced economies are
expected to grow by 1.5 percent in 2023 and 1.4 percent in 2024 accord-
ing to IMF forecasts due to tightening financial conditions and declining
demand. In 2023, the US and the Eurozone are projected to grow by 2.1%
and 0.7%, respectively. As a result of the measures and supports taken to
mitigate the negative effects of the Covid-19 pandemic on the economy
in 2021 and the rapid achievement of high rates in vaccination, the
Turkish economy grew by 11.4% in 2021, the highest growth rate of the
last fifty years. Thus, the Turkish economy has achieved a significant
success by maintaining uninterrupted growth after the global crisis.

Vakif Leasing
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By the end of 2023, our Company increased its total assets
by 98.4% to TL 26,233 million, shareholders' equity by
116.1%to TL 2,863 million and net profit for the period by
178.3% to TL 1,443 million. In 2023, Return on Assets (ROA)
was realized as 6.8%, Net Return on Equity (ROE) as 63.1%
and NPL as 1.1%.

Uncertainties in an environment of tightening global financial
conditions and the ongoing Russian-Ukrainian war and other geopo-
litical tensions are believed to trigger various risks. Tight global
monetary policies restrain global growth by curbing aggregate
demand. Despite tightening global monetary policies, global inflation
remains persistent. A slowdown in the global economy with a soft
landing seems inevitable. At the same time, there are risks such as
US-China trade tensions and other geopolitical tensions, climate
change and natural disasters.

In February 2023, expenditures to repair the damage caused by the
earthquakes centered in Kahramanmaras and Hatay put a significant
burden on the budget. In addition, the higher-than-anticipated
inflation, while positively affecting revenue collection, put pressure
on expenditures and necessitated an increase in budget appropria-
tions. In line with these developments, a supplementary budget was
made in July and TL 1,119.5 billion was added to the revenue and
expenditure figures set by the Central Government Budget Law for
2023. In the January-August period, central government budget
revenues and central government budget expenditures increased by
69.6 percent and 94.9 percent, respectively.

In line with the recommendations of the central government and
regulatory bodies, our Company provided the necessary facilities for
the repayment and postponement of the debts of our customers
who were exposed to the negative effects of the earthquake disaster
on the economy of the region and who had payment difficulties.

In 2023, the financial leasing sector reached an operational volume
of $4.9626 million with 15,260 contracts.

In 2023, our company alone realized 15.2% of the sector's transac-
tion volume. In this context, it increased its turnover from 397,019
thousand USD to 752,207 USD with an increase of 89% compared to
2022. The number of transactions, which was 928 in 2022, was
realized as 1,102 in 2023.

By the end of 2023, our Company increased its total assets by 98.4%
to TL 26,233 million, shareholders' equity by 116.1% to TL 2,863
million and net profit for the period by 178.3% to TL 1,443 million. In
2023, Return on Assets (ROA) was realized as 6.8%, Net Return on
Equity (ROE) as 63.1% and Non-Performing Loans (NPL) as 1.1%.

In 2024, our goal, as always, will be to strengthen our position among
the best service providers in the sector by upholding our values with
a modern and customer-oriented approach based on success, and to
contribute more to our shareholders and the national economy in
line with our sustainable growth strategy.

I would like to thank our shareholders, customers, especially Vakif
Leasing management and all my colleagues for their contribution,
support and trust to the success our company has achieved in the
pastyear.

Best regards,
Mustafa ERDIN
General Manager
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From left to right

Selcuk Gékbayrak (Board Member), Emine Uyumaz (Board Member), Eren Siizen (Board Member), Savas Atanur Kazaz (Board Member),
Mustafa Erdin (General Manager, Board Member), Hazim Akyol (Chairman), Halil Celik (Board Member),
Yilmaz Arslan Aydin (Assistant General Manager), Ersin Ozoguz (Assistant General Manager),
Ali Kog (Assistant General Manager), Mehmet ilkay Coskun (Group Manager)

Vakif Leasing
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MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
THEIR BIOGRAPHIES

(26.06.2019 - ...)

Born in 1969 in Aksaray, Hazim AKYOL graduated from Hacettepe University, Faculty of
Economics and Administrative Sciences, Department of Public Administration in 1990. He
started his banking career at Vaki@ank in 1993 as an Assistant Inspector, and after serving as
an Inspector, he worked as an Assistant Manager in the Commercial Credits Department, and
as a Manager in Bursa Branch, Kavaklidere/Ankara Branch, Kizilay/Ankara Branch, Ankara
Region Corporate Marketing Regional Directorate and Emek/Ankara Branch. Afterwards, he
served as the President of the Salary Payments Department of the Institution and as the
President of the Ankara Corporate Center Branch. He also served as a Board Member in various
subsidiaries of Vakibank. Hazim AKYOL, who is currently serving as Assistant General Manager
at Vakibank, has been serving as the Chairman of the Board of Directors of our Company since
June 26, 2019.

(26.06.2019 - ...)

Born on 01.08.1956 in Trabzon Akgaabat, Halil CELIK completed his primary, secondary and
high school education in Akgaabat. In 1980, he graduated from Eskisehir Academy of Economic
and Commercial Sciences, Department of Economics. In 1982 and he started to work as an
Assistant Inspector at Ziraat Bankasi A.S. Halil CELIK, who served as Inspector, Chief Inspector,
Trabzon and Erzurum Regional Manager in Ziraat Bank, respectively, served as Inspector at Iller
Bank between 2002-2003, Assistant General Manager at Halk Bankasi A.S. between
2003-2010, and Board Member at T.C. Ziraat Bankasi A.S. between 2010-2012. Since
26.06.2019, he has been serving as Assistant Chairman of the Board of Directors of our
Company.

(03.04.2018 - ...)

Born in Adana in 1982, Emine UYUMAZ graduated from Middle East Technical University,
Department of Economics in 2005. She completed her master's degree in Banking and Finance
at Bilgi University. In 2006, she started to work as an Assistant Inspector at T. Vakiflar Bank TAO
and served as Assistant Inspector and Inspector until 2012, after which she worked as Assistant
Manager and Manager in the Commercial Credits Department. Since July 2017, she has been
working as the Head of Commercial Loans Allocation Management at Vakibank. Emine
UYUMAZ has been serving as a Board Member of our Company since April 3, 2018.

(25.06.2020- ...)

Born in 1983 in Ankara, Eren SUZEN completed his primary and secondary education in Ankara
and graduated from Gazi University, Faculty of Economics and Administrative Sciences, Depart-
ment of Business Administration in 2006. He started his career as an assistant inspector at
Vaki@ank in February/2007 and after serving as an inspector for approximately 5 years, he was
appointed as assistant manager at Cayyolu Branch in 2012. After serving as BaP Black Sea
Region Loans Manager, Yenimahalle Branch Manager, Ankara 3rd Region Loans Manager,
Head of Retail and SME Loans Allocation Management, he was appointed as Yenimahalle
Regional Manager. Eren SUZEN has been serving as a Member of the Board of Directors of our
Company since June 25, 2020.
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v MEMBERS OF THE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
THEIR BIOGRAPHIES

Board Member -

(01.04.2021 - ...)

Born in 1964 in Kirklareli, Savas Atanur KAZAZ graduated from Gazi University, Faculty of
Economics and Administrative Sciences, Department of Business Administration in 1987. He
started his banking career at VakifBank in 1990 as an Assistant Financial Analyst and worked as
a Specialist and Assistant Manager in the Credits Coordination, Credit Marketing and Credit
Monitoring Departments, then as the Head Office Branchless Banking Directorate, Ivedik
Organized Sanayi, Pursaklar, Elvankent, Ankara Public Corporate Branch Directorates and then
as the Head Office Retail Banking Sales Coordination Manager. Savas Atanur KAZAZ, who is
currently serving as a member of the Board of Directors of Tiirkiye Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O.
Memur ve Hizmetlileri Emekli ve Saglik Yardim Sandigi Vakfi, has been serving as an Independ-
ent Board Member in our company since April 1, 2021.

(31.03.2022 - ...)

Born in 1978 in Artvin, Selguk GOKBAYRAK graduated from Anadolu University, Faculty of
Economics and Administrative Sciences, Department of Business Administration in 2002. After
starting his professional career as a banker candidate in 1999, he worked as Audit Assistant at
PricewaterhouseCoopers between 2000-2002, as Finance Manager at Evtekssan. Dis.Tic. A.S.
between 2002-2005, as Assistant General Manager at Tita Tekstil A.S. between 2005-2007, as
General Manager at FATSU FMI Grup A.S. between 2007-2012, Founding Partner and Manager
of HAM&HAM Gida Insaat Turizm A.S. between 2012-2020. Since 2020, he has been serving as
CFO at AVS Kiiresel Gemi Tedarigi A.S. and General Manager at Ekol Denizcilik A.S. Selguk
GOKBAYRAK, who also holds a Certified Public Accountant and NBA Certificate, has been
serving as an Independent Board Member in our Company since 31/03/2022.

(05.05.2021 - ...)

Born in 1969 in Trabzon, Mustafa ERDIN graduated from Ankara University, Faculty of Political
Sciences, Department of Business Administration in 1990. In 2003, he completed his master's
degree in financial management at Boston University / Metropolitan College SA. He started his
professional career as an assistant account specialist at the Ministry of Finance, Board of
Account Specialists in 1992. In 1995, he became an account specialist and in 2002 he became a
chief account specialist. Between 2004 and 2009, he worked as a group head and department
head at the Revenue Administration. Between 2009 and 2020, he worked as financial affairs
coordinator and member of the board of directors responsible for financial affairs in a construc-
tion group with international business in Turkey. Mustafa ERDIN also holds a Certified Public
Accountant and Independent Auditor Certificate. He has been serving as a member of the
Board of Directors and General Manager in our Company since 05/05/2021.

Vakif Leasing
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V' OUR MANAGERS

Bahadir
DALMIS

Marketing Manager

Murat
KURTTAS

Branch Manager —Antalya

Ash KEKEG

Financial Affairs and
Investor Relations Manager

Mahmut Tolga '
SOZER

Legal Counselor

Bugra ULUSOY

Administrative Affairs Manager

.

Ferruh ATALAY

Branch Manager - Adana

Miige

SENYIGIT

Operation Manager

llyas
DOGAN

Finance Manager

AN BN R B

Atakan
ARMUTCU

Asset Management Manager
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V' GENERAL INFORMATION
ABOUT THE COMPANY

@ Date of Commencement of Operations 15/09/1988

® Main Field of Activity Financial Leasing

® Company Headquarters Istanbul

@ Paid-in Capital 1,000,000 Thousand TL

® Number of Personnel 82

® Chairman of the Board of Directors  Hazim AKYOL

® General Manager Mustafa ERDIN

® Independent Audit Organization Glney Bagimsiz Denetim ve SMMM A.S.
®Address inkilap Mahallesi Dr. Adnan Biyiikdeniz Caddesi No:7/A i¢ Kapi No:9 34768 Umraniye / Istanbul
®@Telephone +90(216) 2859200

® Trade Registry Number 248616

® Fax +90(216)2859299

® \Web-site www.vakifleasing.com.tr

SUBSIDIARIES AND AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

@ \/akif Faktoring A.S.

@ Vakif Pazarlama Sanayi ve Tic. A.S. Vakif Enerji ve
® Madencilik A.S.

@ Dogu Yatirim Holding A.S.

@ Vakif Yatinm Menkul Degerler A.S.

® World Foundation UBB Ltd. in Liquidation

FANIINLDNIINIFN 91 NVG 1 VUNL

% Thousand TL
e T.Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O. % 62,05 |620,456
e Public Offerings % 37,95 |[379,544
e Total % 100 1,000,000

Vakif Leasing
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v CORPORATE IDENTITY /
History and Milestones

Vakif Leasing was established on September 15, 1988
as a subsidiary of Vakibank under the name Vakif
Finansal Kiralama A.S. In 1991, it was listed on the
Istanbul Stock Exchange and became the first leasing
company to go public.

Vakif Leasing, which has completed 35 years of success,
continues to be one of Turkey's values by contributing to
the development of our country and increasing employ-
ment. Vakif Leasing, which provides very important
advantages to investors in leasing with its experience of
making the right move at the right time through
diligent work, takes firm steps into the future in a
determined, faithful and progressive manner with the
right principles it has adopted from yesterday to today.

Aiming to provide financial intermediation to SMEs and
investors in the commercial segment, which constitute
a significant portion of its customer portfolio, Vakif
Leasing continues on its way by increasing its market
share in the sector.

The most important indicator of Vakif Leasing's innova-
tive approach is that it was the first company to provide
leasing services in sectors such as aircraft and aviation
and wind energy.

Vakif Leasing has branches in Ankara, Adana, Izmir,
Antalya and continues its comprehensive activities with
its wide customer portfolio and service network all over
the country by taking the corporate power of
Vaki@ank's nearly one thousand branches behind it.

Vakif Leasing reached
asset size of TL
23,232,572 thousand,
net profit
fot the period of
TL 1,443,089
thousand and
hareholder’ s equity
of TL 2,862,941
thousand in 2023

Vakif Leasing
reached
289,848 USD
turnoverin
2014.
Vakif Leasing
became
the first leasing company
to go public
Vakif Leasing was
established.

Vakif Leasing
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CORPORATE IDENTITY /

Our Vision - Our Mission Our Values - Our Code of Ethics

/4

To be a Leasing Leader Company that is the first
choice by the investors in the leasing sector,
and that its employees will be proud of, by
offering its customers the most appropriate
finance opportunities in their investments
with the highest level of customer satisfac-tion
and service quality.

/4

Creating” Continuous Value for our customers,
employ- ees and shareholders with a success-
based, contempo- rary and customer-oriented
approach.

/4

Quality service approach based on
knowledge and benefit of all.

Fast and effective decision making.

High sense of responsibility with

a be liefin continuous

Improvement.

Open communication based on mutual

trust. Employees with team spirit, dedicated,to

success. Commitment to ethical and profess

A\

rules.

/4

Full compliance with the regulations
issued by law. Honesty in relations with
customers, suppliers and creditors.

Transparency and reliability.

Operate on the grounds  of economic
development as well as profitability.

Respect information and confidentiality and @p§
secrets.

Not creating unfair competition by considering the
common interest of the sector.

g 5})

Vakif [easing ‘
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/' VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH
CORPORATE MANAGEMENT PRINCIPLES

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE MANAGEMENT PRINCIPLES

Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. ("Vakif Leasing" or the "Company") is committed to the corporate management principles set forth in the Law
on Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies, capital markets legislation, Turkish Commercial Code and related regulations and
pays utmost attention to the realization of these principles. The Company has adopted the concepts of equality, transparency, accountabili-
ty and responsibility of the Corporate Management Principles ("Principles") published by the Capital Markets Board ("CMB").

The Company has complied with the Corporate Management Principles included in the annex of the Corporate Management Commu-
nigué numbered II-17.1, which entered into force upon publication in the Official Gazette dated January 03,2014 and numbered 28871,
a-) Our company is in compliance with the principles numbered (1.3.1.), (1.3.5.), (1.3.6.), (1.3.9.), (4.2.6.), (4.3.1.), (4.3.2.), (4.3.3.), (4.3.4.),
(435.),(436.),(43.7),(438),(45.1),(4.5.2.),(4.5.3.),(4.5.4.),(4.59.),(4.5.10.),(4.5.11.), (4.5.12.), (4.5.13.), (4.6.2.) and (4.6.3.) which are
mandatory for companies to implement.

The duties, powers and responsibilities of the "Investor Relations Department", which operates as the Financial Affairs and Investor
Relations Department, have been revised in accordance with the framework set out in Article 11 of the Corporate Management Commu-
niqué, thereby ensuring full compliance with the relevant legislation.

b-) Concerning non-mandatory principles;
There are female members on the Company's Board of Directors. No target ratio and target time has been set for the ratio of female mem-
bers in the Board of Directors. In this context, there is partial compliance with the advisory principle no. 4.3.9. 4.5. Regarding the Sustainabili-

ty Policy, compliance studies have been initiated.

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT PRINCIPLES COMPLIANCE REPORT:

It will be prepared in accordance with the Capital Markets Board's decision dated 10.01.2019 and numbered 2/49, Compliance Reporting
No. II-17.1 will be made through the PDP platform using the Corporate Compliance Report (URF) and Corporate Management Information
Form (KYBF) templates.

Related Reports are available at www.kap.org.tr/tr/sirket-bilgileri/ozet/1115-vakif-finansal-kiralama-a-s
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT PRACTICES
SHAREHOLDERS
2.1 Investor Relations Department

The Investor Relations Department operates under the Financial
Affairs and Investor Relations Department, reporting to Group
Manager Mehmet ilkay COSKUN in relation to the duties of the
Investor Relations Department.

The Financial Affairs and Investor Relations Department, which
manages relations with institutional investors, rating agencies
and shareholders, makes quarterly presentations to the Board of
Directors on all activities carried out, particularly the presentation
of financial analysis in comparison with competitor companies.

The license of the department manager is as shown below:

Mehmet Tkay Q!KUN % !cv:o-a&e Managament !bnp Ucense
Manager

Captal Market Actvibes Level 3
License
* Serves as a member of the Carporate Govemance Committee in accordance with Article
11, paragraph 2 of the Corporate Govemance Communiqué
The personnel working under the Financial Affairs and Investor

Relations Department are as follows

‘Enve YALGIN Manager

Number

Ry Group Manager | 02162859270 | | COSKUN@vahieasing comr

A A, VLYY A |
COSKUN gl s v ™
Ash KEKEC DOwector 0216 28592 12 A KEKEC Evakfieasing com i
Nesihan YILDIZLI . D15 2859274 N YILOIZUI@vakifaasing comtr
Ece AKGUN Expert D116 288592 9 E AKGUNZvakifeasing com ir
Bang ATK Expert Asst 02162859273 B ATIKEvalteasing com ¥
Adnan BERK

Expert 162858 YUMI L §
YUMUSAK apart Asst 0216 2855280 A YUMUSAK @vaifieasing com

The main duties and responsibilities of the Investor Relations
Departmentare as follows

- To ensure that shareholder records are kept in a healthy,
secure and up-to-date manner,

- Responding to shareholders' written requests for information
about the Company, except for confidential and trade secret
information that has not been disclosed to the public,

- To ensure that the general assembly meeting is held in
accordance with the applicable legislation, articles of associa-
tionandotherinternal regulations,

- To prepare the documents that can be utilized by the share-
holders at the general assembly meeting,

- To ensure that the voting results are recorded and reports on
the results are sent to the shareholders,

- Overseeing and monitoring all matters related to public
disclosure, including legislation and the Company's disclosure

policy.
In Investor Relations Department throughout 2023;

2023 Ordinary General Assembly Meeting was organized to
fulfill the scope and manner required by the Relevant Law,
Capital Markets Law, Corporate Governance Communiqué,
Articles of Association of the Company and other legislation,

2.2 Exercise of Shareholders' Right to Obtain
Information

Questions addressed to the Investor Relations Unit, except for
confidential information and trade secrets, are answered either
by telephone or in writing by contacting the most authorized
personofthe relevant subject.

In 2023, there were no written requests for information received
by the Investor Relations Unit; however, the necessary answers
were given to telephone inquiries. Information and develop-
ments concerning the Company, such as share transactions,
capital increases, dividend payments, general assembly meet-
ings, financial reports, material event disclosures, etc., are
regularly communicated to the relevant parties via the Compa-
ny's website, mail and telephone. In addition, written responses
are provided to the requests of local shareholders for information
on the status of their shares, the conversion of their existing
shares and the distribution of shares after death during the activi-
ty period.

On the other hand, the request for the appointment of a special
auditor is not regulated as an individual right in the articles of
association and there has been no request for the appointment
of aspecial auditor during the reporting period.

2.3 General Assembly Meetings
Ordinary General Assembly;

The General Assembly of our Company for the operating period
of 2022 was held on 11.08.2023 at the Company headquarters
with the participation of the representatives of the shareholders,
the Ministry Representative of the Ministry of Trade of the
Republic of Turkey, and 62.20% shareholders.

The Company held its Ordinary General Assembly Meeting in
2022 in accordance with the provisions of the "Regulation on
General Assembly Meetings of Joint Stock Companies to be held
electronically" and the "Communiqué on the General Assembly
System to be applied in the General Assembly Meetings of Joint
Stock Companies". Thus, shareholders had the opportunity to
attend the General Assembly meeting electronically, make
proposals, express their opinions and vote.

In order to inform the shareholders prior to the General Assembly
meetings, the invitation to the General Assembly, agenda,
sample power of attorney and other documents attached to it
are disclosed to the public through the Public Disclosure Platform
and the Turkish Trade Registry Gazette within the framework of
the relevant legislation, and these documents are also published
on the Company's website. For the e-General Assembly service,
which enables attending, making proposals, expressing opinions
and voting at the General Assembly Meeting electronically, a call
for the General Assembly is made at least 21 days in advance,
excluding the meeting and call days, in the MKK system. In
addition, these documents are also delivered by mail to our
shareholders whose address information is up-to-date in the
Company'srecords.
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The Financial Statements and Footnotes for the year 2022, includ-
ing the Company's Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss statements
for the 2022 accounting period, the Board of Directors' Annual
Report for the year 2022, the Independent External Audit Firm
Report, prepared for the General Assembly, are made available
for the information and review of the Company's shareholders
prior to the General Assembly at the Company Head Office as
well as the MKK system. In addition, the invitation, agenda and
proxy forms for the General Assembly can be obtained upon
request of the shareholders. Shareholders who have the right to
attend the General Assembly and fulfilled the necessary proce-
dures to attend the General Assembly attended the Ordinary
General Assembly Meetingin 2022.

In the announcements and invitation letters published before the
General Assembly;

-Meeting date, time and place,

-Meeting agenda,

-Which body made the invitation (Company Board of Directors),
-Addresses (Head Office) where the Annual Report and balance
sheet, profit and loss statements will be submitted for the review
of the shareholders in the announcements of the ordinary meet-
ings,

-Samples of proxy forms for shareholders who cannot attend the
meetingin person are announced to the shareholders.

The Annual Report contains information such as Company activi-
ties, information on senior management, Company balance
sheets, balance sheet footnotes, Independent Audit Report,
Corporate Management Principles Compliance Report, etc. The
Annual Report is provided to shareholders upon request by the
Investor Relations Department before and after the General
Assembly.

In both Ordinary General Assemblies of the Company, all share-
holders, regardless of their shareholding percentages, have the
right to speak, express their opinions and ask questions on
agenda items. On August 11, 2023, the questions asked by the
shareholders who attended the Ordinary General Assembly
meeting both physically and electronically, the wishes and
opinions expressed, and the answers given by the Chairman of
the Meeting and the Board of Divan regarding the aforemen-
tioned issues were included in the minutes of the General Assem-
bly meeting in detail. Following the General Assembly, the
minutes of the General Assembly meeting and its annexes are
announced to the public and shareholders through the Public
Disclosure Platform, the Turkish Trade Registry Gazette, the
e-Company Information Portal and the e-General Assembly
Electronic General Assembly System, and are also published on
the Company's website in accordance with the relevant legisla-
tion.

In 2023, there were no transactions where the decision was left
to the General Assembly due to the lack of affirmative votes by
the majority of the Independent Board Members.

Shareholders who control the management, members of the
board of directors, executives with administrative responsibilities
and their spouses and relatives by blood or marriage up to
second degree do not have any significant transactions with the
Company or its subsidiaries that may cause conflict of interest. In
addition, it has been understood that these persons do not carry
out any commercial business transactions that fall within the
scope of the Company's or its subsidiaries' field of activity on their
own behalf or on behalf of others, or that they do not have unlim-
ited shareholder responsibilities in another partnership engaged
in the same type of commercial business.

Pursuant to the last item on the agenda, shareholders and other
invitees exercised their right to ask questions, and after receiving
adequate answers from the company executives, they expressed
their wishes for a favorable outcome.

2.4 Voting Rights and Minority Rights

The voting rights of shareholders and provisions regarding the
exercise of these rights are set forth in the Company's Articles of
Association.

Each holder of ten shares or each person representing such
number of shares shall have one vote at the General Assembly
meetings. Holders of more than ten shares shall have the right to
vote without limitation in a number to be determined according
totheabove proportion.

There is no cross shareholding in the Company's capital. The
exercise of minority rights is subject to the Turkish Commercial
Code, Capital Markets Law, related legislation and the commu-
niqués and resolutions of the CMB.

Our Company does not use cumulative voting method.
2.5 Dividend Rights

There are no privileges regarding participation in the Company's
profits.

The "Dividend Distribution Policy" of our Company, which deter-
mines the dividend distribution decisions by taking into account
the provisions of the Turkish Commercial Code, Capital Markets
Legislation, Capital Markets Board regulations, tax laws and other
legal legislation, together with the Company's Articles of Associa-
tion, has been determined according to the following principles.

Vakif Leasing

FutureTowardsYou



VAKIF LEASING
ANNUAL REPORT / 2023 : 26

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A S.

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT PRACTICES

Accordingto this;

- The Board of Directors makes proposals to the General Assem-
bly for dividend distribution, taking into consideration the CMB
legislation, market conditions and the Company's objectives. As a
dividend distribution policy, it is envisaged that at least 10% of the
distributable profit will be distributed in the form of cash and/or
dematerialized shares, provided that there is no unfavorable
change in world and national economic conditions and that the
Company's financial structure and capital adequacy ratios are at
theforeseenlevels.

- The distribution decision becomes effective upon approval at
the General Assembly Meeting and the decisions taken are
announced to the public on the same day via the Public Disclo-
sure Platform.

- Dividends per share of the shares to be issued by the Company
shall be distributed equally to all shareholders. The Company may
consider distributing dividend advances in accordance with the
provisions of applicable legislation.

- Cash dividend payments are made no later than the end of the
second month following the date of the General Assembly meet-
ing at which the dividend distribution decision is taken. Dividend
distribution in the form of bonus shares is realized after obtaining
legal permissions.

- There are no privileged shares in terms of dividend distribution.

- If dividend distribution is not made, the Board of Directors
informs the shareholders why it was not distributed and where
the undistributed profit was used.

- The Company's Articles of Association, the Capital Markets Law,
the provisions of the Capital Markets Board's communiqués and
the Turkish Commercial Code shall be complied with in dividend
distributions.

The Company's Board of Directors submits its proposal for
dividend distribution to the General Assembly every year and to
the shareholders through the annual report prior to the General
Assembly. The Board of Directors' proposal for dividend distribu-
tion is discussed and resolved at the General Assembly. The
decision taken in 2023 regarding dividend distribution for the
year 2022 has been implemented and the necessary notifica-
tions have been made to the official authorities. In addition, the
relevant decision was announced to the public on the same day
through the Public Disclosure Platform.

2.6 Transfer of Shares

Our Company's Articles of Association do not contain any
provisions restricting the transfer of shares. According to Article 7
of the Articles of Association, all of the Company's shares are
registered shares and their transfer is possible in compliance with
the provisions of the legislation.

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY
3.1 Company Website and its Content

The Company's Turkish and English websites can be accessed at
www.vakifleasing.com.tr.

The Company's website is in compliance with the principles
numbered (2.1.1), (2.1.2) and (2.1.3) of the Corporate Manage-
ment Communiqué (l1-17.1) published by the CMB on
03.01.2014.

3.2 Annual Report

The Company's Annual Report is in compliance with the princi-
ples numbered (2.2.1) and (2.2.2.2) of the Corporate Manage-
ment Communiqué (ll-17.1) published by the CMB on
03.01.2014.

STAKEHOLDERS
4.1 Informing Stakeholders

Vakif Leasing's stakeholders are regularly informed about the
issues deemed necessary through annual reports, news and
disclosures on the website.

In order to ensure the flow of accurate and reliable information,
quarterly financial statements are shared with investors via the
website and disclosed on PDP. All questions and requests from
investors are answered by phone and e-mail.
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4.2 Stakeholder Participation in Management

Our Company has established two different models for stake-
holders' participation in management.

Committee Meetings: Decisions taken at regular committee
meetings are implemented by the Company.

Suggestion System: Through this system, employees submit their
suggestions for improvement and development in all matters
related to the Company and the suggestions that are deemed
appropriate are putinto practice.

In addition, "Weekly General Evaluation Meetings" are organized
to inform employees about the Company's general activities and
progress and to receive their suggestions, and the Company's
financial structure and performance data are evaluated together
with employees.

4.3 Human Resources Policy

Our Company's human resources policy is carried out within the
framework of the "Human Resources Regulation". We also
continue to work on career planning. Our Company plays an
important role in the success and development of the sector.
Vakif Leasing pays special attention to equipping and developing
its employees with the necessary equipment for productive
work, especially training, and regards its employees as its most
important capital. It employs employees with researcher, vision-
ary, creative and problem-solving qualities.

All employees in our company have the understanding of
working with team spirit and the power to create innovation is at
a highlevel.

Recruitments and promotions at Vakif Leasing are realized with
the decision of the Board of Directors within the framework of
the Human Resources Regulation. There is no discrimination
among the employees of our Company. Our employees enjoy full
equality inall matters.

4.4 Code of Ethics and Social Responsibility

e Full compliance with legislated regulations

¢ Honesty, transparency and reliability in relations with custom-
ers,vendorsand creditors

¢ Operate on the grounds of economic development as well as
profitability

e Respecting information and confidentiality and keeping secrets
e Not creating unfair competition by considering the common

interest of the sector.

Vakif Leasing is aware of its social responsibilities towards its
customers, employees and society and strives to fulfill these
responsibilities in the best way possible. It complies with all
regulations related to business life, stands behind its public
commitments in its services and gives confidence, encourages its
employees to honest and ethical behavior, takes all precautions
regarding the safety of the workplace, does not engage in
misleading and deceptive advertising and marketing activities,
complies with and supports the rules prohibiting discrimination.
It tries to resolve customer problems quickly, covers most of the
health expenses of its employees, and continuously strives to
improve service quality.

4.5 Sustainability Policy

Pursuant to the provisions of the Communiqué on Amendments
to the Capital Markets Board Corporate Management Commu-
niqué (II-17.1) (II-17.1.a), an Environmental and Social Policy Text
and an Environmental and Social Impacts Working Group have
been established with the approval of the Board of Directors of
our company in order to comply with the sustainability principles
and to establish an environmental and social risk management
policy, the implementation of which is voluntary, and the relevant
text has been published under the corporate communication tab
of our website. Sustainability Reports are available at
www.kap.org.tr/tr/sirket-bilgileri/ozet/1115-vakif-fi-
nansal-kiralama-a-s.

With the working group headed by the relevant Assistant General
Manager, our company makes maximum effort to comply with
sustainability principles and takes into account the environmental
and social impacts of its activities while determining its strategies
as per its policy.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
51 Structure and Composition of the Board of Directors
According to Article 8 of the Company's Articles of Association, the composition of the Board of Directors is defined as follows

"The affairs and management of the Company shall be carried out by a board of directors consisting of at least 6 members including the
general manager. The board of directors elects a chairman from among its members and an assistant chairman to act in his absence. The
duties of general manager and chairman of the board of directors cannot be combined in the same person. The members other than the
general manager are elected by the shareholders at the general assembly in accordance with the provisions of the Turkish Commercial
Code. The majority of the members of the board of directors shall consist of non-executive members. Among the non-executive mem-
bers of the Board of Directors, there are independent members who are qualified to perform their duties without being influenced
under any circumstances and whose number and qualifications are determined in accordance with the regulations of the Capital
Markets Board on Corporate Management and the provisions of the relevant legislation. The General Manager of the Company, or in his
absence, his assistant, is a natural member of the Board of Directors. The general manager and his/her assistant must have a bachelor's
degree and at least seven years of professional knowledge and experience in finance or business administration. In the implementation
of the provisions of this article, the provisions of the Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies Law No. 6361 and related
legislation are reserved."

NAME and Surname DATE OF
START FOR
OFFICE
Hazim AKYOL Chairman of the Board of Directors 26/06/2019
Assistant Chairman of the Board of Directors - 26/06/2019
Halil CELIK Independent Member
Audit Committee - Chairman 01/04/2022
Corporate Management Committee - Chairman 01/04/2022
Emine UYUMAZ Board Member 03/04/2018
. Board Member 25/06/2020
Eren SUZEN
Corporate Management Committee - Member 01/04/2022
Board Member - Independent Member 01/04/2021
Savas Atanur KAZAZ _ .
Audit Committee-Member 05/04/2021
Early Detection of Risk Committee - Chairman 05/04/2021
Selcuk Board Member - Independent Member 01/04/2022
GOKBAYRAK Early Detection of Risk Committee - Member 01/04/2022
Mustafa ERDIN Board Member - General Manager 05/05/2021

The Chairman of the Board of Directors has no executive duties. General Manager Mustafa ERDIN is an executive member of the Board
of Directors.

The resumes of the members of the Board of Directors are published in the Annual Report.

In accordance with the provisions of the CMB Communiqué Serial: IV No: 56 of the CMB Communiqué on the Determination and Imple-
mentation of Corporate Management Principles, the number of independent members has been determined as three. Halil CELIK, Savag
Atanur KAZAZ, Selguk GOKBAYRAK have the independence criteria specified in the CMB's Corporate Management Principles numbered
4.3.6 and 4.3.7, and these persons have independence declarations within the framework of the criteria specified in the legislation,
articles of association and the relevant communiqué.

The independent members of the Board of Directors have declared that they are independent and there is no situation that eliminates
theirindependence as of the relevant activity period.
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Partnerships and duties of the members of the
Board of Directors

outside the Company:

NAME SURNAME puTY

Hazim AKYOL T. Vaxifiar Bankasi TADO Assistart Gonoral Manager

Emine UYUMAZ T. Vokiflar Barkasi TAQ Commercial Loans Allccaton
Head of Management

‘Eren SUZEN T Vaifiar Barkasi TAO T Vaiflar Bankas TAC, |
Yenuimahale Regional
T Vaiflar Bankast TA QO
Meomur ve Hizmetlerd
Emekdi ve Sojk Yordm

A\

Saves Atarwr KAZAZ T. Vakiflar Barkasi TAO Servhia Vakt Audt
Comminee Member, Gingm
AS. Board Member

52 Operating Principles of the Board of
Directors

The Board of Directors shall convene at the location of the Compa-
ny's headquarters or at the location requested by the majority of
the members of the Board of Directors as required by the Compa-
ny's business and operations. However, it is obligatory to convene
at least once a month. Even if the meeting is not duly convened,
the presence of all members at the meeting place on a certain day
and time shall not prejudice the validity of the meeting. Those who
have the right to attend the meetings of the Board of Directors of
the Company may attend these meetings electronically in accord-
ance with Article 1527 of the Turkish Commercial Code. The
Company may establish an electronic meeting system that will
enable the right holders to participate and vote in these meetings
electronically in accordance with the provisions of the Commu-
niqué on General Assemblies to be held in Electronic Environment
in commercial companies other than the general assemblies of
joint stock companies, or may purchase services from systems
established for this purpose. In the meetings to be held, it is
ensured that the right holders can exercise their rights specified in
the relevant legislation within the framework specified in the
provisions of the communiqué through the system established in
accordance with this provision of the Articles of Association of the
Company or through the system from which support services will
be purchased. The provisions of the Turkish Commercial Code shall
apply to the meeting quorum and decision quorum of the Board
of Directors.

The agendas of the Board of Directors meetings are determined
according to the issues and authorizations specified in the Articles
of Association. 41 Board of Directors meetings were held during
the period 01.01.2023 - 31.12.2023. The Board of Directors
convenes at the location of the Company's headquarters or at the
location requested by the majority of the members of the Board of
Directors as required by the Company's business and operations.
However, it is obligatory to convene at least once a month. The

provisions of the Turkish Commercial Code shallapply to the
quorum for the Board of Directors meetings and the quorum for
decisions. The General Manager's Secretariat is responsible for
informing and communicating with the members of the Board of
Directors. Decisions that need to be disclosed to the public are disclosed

to the public immediately after the end of the meeting.
- - Determining the areas in which the Company will operate and
approving business and financing plans,
--Issues related to the convening and organization of the Ordinary
/ Extraordinary General Assembly,
- Finalization of the annual report to be submitted to the General
Assembly,
- Election of the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors and appointment of new members,
- Creation or termination of administrative units,
- Appointment or dismissal of the Chief Executive Officer/General
Manager,
- Formation of committees,
- Merger, demerger, restructuring, sale of the entire company or
10% of the fixed assets or investment of more than 10%, expendi-
ture of more than 10% of the total assets,
- Determination of the Company's dividend policy and the profit to
be distributed,
- All members actually participate in the meetings held on issues
such as capitalincrease or decrease.

5.3 Number, Structure and Independence of the

In order to fulfill the duties and responsibilities of the Board of
Directors of our Company, an Audit Committee consisting of two
members (Chairman - Halil CELIK, Member - Savas Atanur KAZAZ),
a Corporate Management Committee consisting of three mem-
bers (Chairman - Halil CELIK, Member - Eren SUZEN, Member -
Emre YALCIN) and an Early Detection of Risk Committee consisting
of two members (Chairman - Savag Atanur KAZAZ, Member -
Selcuk GOKBAYRAK) were established in accordance with the
Corporate Management Communiqué required for publicly
traded companies.

The number of members of the Board of Directors of the Company
is 6. Since the number of members of the committees affiliated to
the Board of Directors is higher than the number of members of
the Board of Directors, members serve on more than one commit-
tee according to the principles set forth in the CMB Corporate
Management Principlesand BRSA.

5.4 Risk Management and Internal Control Mechanism
- Internal control:

The internal control unit, which reports to the Audit Committee
within the Board of Directors, is responsible for identifying the risks
that occur or may occur within the scope of the control points
established specifically for the company, ensuring that preventive
and mitigating measures are taken against these identified risks,
and reporting the findings to the Audit Committee periodically (at
leasttwice ayear).
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A systematic and disciplined approach is taken to ensure that the
Company's activities, systems and processes are carried out in
accordance with legal regulations, management strategies and
policies, and leasing practices, and to ensure compliance with
directives, workflows and employee authority and responsibility,
and recommendations are made to identify risks and take meas-
ures to prevent and/or mitigate them.

In order to prevent losses that may affect the achievement of the
Company's objectives, it is aimed to establish an internal control
system to identify, evaluate, monitor and manage potential
credit, market and operational risk factors that may affect the
Company's assets according to impact and probability and to use
the resultsin decision-making mechanisms.

Effective from 2020, within the scope of the "Communiqué on
the Management and Audit of Information Systems of Financial
Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies" published by the
BRSA in the Official Gazette dated 06.04.2019 and numbered
30737, the Internal Control Units were also assigned the task of
preparing, reviewing and presenting the "Regulatory Compliance
Report" to the Board of Directors. In the same communiqué, it is
also emphasized that although external services may be used for
the preparation of the "Risk Assessment Report" and "Security
Breaches Report", the presentation of the reports to the manage-
ment should be made by the intemal control unit or other units of
the Company.

At the same time, the Internal Control Manager, as the exclusive
Compliance Officer, is also responsible for taking the necessary
measures throughout the Company to comply with the Financial
Crimes Investigation Board's legal regulations, carrying out
training and control activities and ensuring communication with
the Board.

- Risk Management:

It operates under the Early Detection of Risk Committee within
the Board of Directors. In line with the Company's general strate-
gies and short- and long-term goals, it determines the principles,
approaches and basic elements in order to reveal the risks that
the Company will be exposed to and the strategies to be followed
for these risks, and periodically reports to the Early Detection of
Risk Committee (recommendation - suggestion; at least 6 times a
year-report; once ayear).

The risk management process is a cycle in which risks that pose or
are likely to pose an obstacle to the realization of the strategic
objectives of the organization are identified, defined, classified,
prioritized as a result of risk assessment, evaluated and moni-
tored.
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5.5Strategic Objectives of the Company

The strategic targets set by our managers are evaluated at the
end of each year and the targets for the coming year are
approved. In addition, our Board of Directors evaluates the
achievement of the targets set.

5.6Financial Rights

At the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting dated August 11,
2023, it was decided to pay a monthly net payment of TL 16,000
to the members of the Board of Directors.

There is no other remuneration or rights granted to the members
of the Board of Directors. Remuneration and benefits earned by
the members of the Board of Directors are not determined
according to their performance. Defects and damages that may
be caused by the members of the Board of Directors during the
execution of their duties are not insured.

The Company has not made any loans or credits to any Board
Member, nor has it made any personal loan to any person
through a third party, and there are no guarantees or collateral,
such as indemnities, given by the Company for the benefit of any
third party.

In accordance with Corporate Management Principles, remuner-
ation and all other benefits provided to board members and
senior executives are disclosed to the public through the annual
report. However, the disclosure is not made on an individual
basis, but in a way to distinguish between board members and
senior executives.

In 2023, our Company paid gross salaries of TL 1,961 thousand to
the Members of the Board of Directors and TL 12,807 thousand
to the General Manager and Assistant General Managers.
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MY DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE WITHIN THE SCOPE OF THE CORPORATE MANAGEMENT COMMUNIQUE

a) | have complied with the principle that there is no employment relation in a managerial position to undertake important duties and
responsibilities within the last five years between the Company, the partnerships in which the Company has management control or
significant influence, the shareholders who have management control or significant influence in the Company and the legal entities in
which these shareholders have management control, and the Company itself, its spouse and blood relatives and relatives by marriage up
to second degree and | have complied with the principle of not owning, jointly or individually, more than 5% of the capital or voting rights
or privileged shares, or not having established a material business relationship,

b) Within the last five years, | have complied with the principle of being an employee or a member of the Board of Directors in a manage-
rial position that will assume important duties and responsibilities as a partner (5% or more) in companies from which the company
purchases or sells services or products to a significant extent within the framework of the agreements made, especially the audit, (includ-
ing tax audit, legal audit, internal audit) rating and consultancy of the company, during the periods when the services or products are sold,

¢) | have the professional training, knowledge and experience to duly fulfill the duties to be undertaken due to being an independent
member of the Board of Directors,

¢) Not working full-time in public institutions and organizations after being elected as a member, except for university faculty member-
ship, provided that it is in accordance with the legislation to which they are affiliated,

d) Iwillbe aresident in Turkey according to Income Tax Law (G.V.K.) dated 31.12.1960 and numbered 193

e) | have strong ethical standards, professional reputation and experience to make positive contributions to the Company's activities, to
maintain impartiality in conflicts of interest between the Company and shareholders, and to make decisions freely by taking into account
the rights of stakeholders,

f) I am able to allocate time for company affairs to the extent that | can follow the functioning of the company's activities and fully fulfill
the requirements of the duties undertaken,

g) I have not been amember of the Board of Directors of the Company for more than six years within the last ten years,

g) The same person is not serving as an independent member of the Board of Directors in more than three of the companies in which the
company or the shareholders who control the management of the company control the management and in more than five of the
companies traded on the stock exchange in total,

h) I'have not been registered and announced on behalf of the legal entity elected as a member of the Board of Directors,

In the event that a situation arises that removes my independence, | will immediately notify the board of directors of the change to be
disclosed to the public, in which case | will resign from my board membership and duties in principle due to the loss of my independence,
I declare, accept and undertake above statements. 14.08.2023

Halil CELIK
Independent Board Member
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DECLARATIONS OF INDEPENDENCE WITHIN
THE SCOPE OF THE COMMUNIQUE ON THE
DETERMINATION AND APPLICATION OF
CORPORATE MANAGEMENT PRINCIPLES

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
ISTANBUL

MY DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE WITHIN THE SCOPE OF THE CORPORATE MANAGEMENT COMMUNIQUE

a) | have complied with the principle that there is no employment relation in a managerial position to undertake important duties and
responsibilities within the last five years between the Company, the partnerships in which the Company has management control or
significant influence, the shareholders who have management control or significant influence in the Company and the legal entities in
which these shareholders have management control, and the Company itself, its spouse and blood relatives and relatives by marriage up
to second degree and | have complied with the principle of not owning, jointly or individually, more than 5% of the capital or voting rights
or privileged shares, or not having established a material business relationship,

b) Within the last five years, | have complied with the principle of being an employee or a member of the Board of Directors in a manage-
rial position that will assume important duties and responsibilities as a partner (5% or more) in companies from which the company
purchases or sells services or products to a significant extent within the framework of the agreements made, especially the audit, (includ-
ing tax audit, legal audit, internal audit) rating and consultancy of the company, during the periods when the services or products are sold,

¢) | have the professional training, knowledge and experience to duly fulfill the duties to be undertaken due to being an independent
member of the Board of Directors,

¢) Not working full-time in public institutions and organizations after being elected as a member, except for university faculty member-
ship, provided that it is in accordance with the legislation to which they are affiliated,

d) Iwillbe aresident in Turkey according to Income Tax Law (G.V.K.) dated 31.12.1960 and numbered 193

e) | have strong ethical standards, professional reputation and experience to make positive contributions to the Company's activities, to
maintain impartiality in conflicts of interest between the Company and shareholders, and to make decisions freely by taking into account
the rights of stakeholders,

f)| am able to allocate time for company affairs to the extent that | can follow the functioning of the company's activities and fully fulfill
the requirements of the duties undertaken,

g) I have not been amember of the Board of Directors of the Company for more than six years within the last ten years,

g) The same person is not serving as an independent member of the Board of Directors in more than three of the companies in which the
company or the shareholders who control the management of the company control the management and in more than five of the
companies traded on the stock exchangein total,

h) I'have not been registered and announced on behalf of the legal entity elected asa member of the Board of Directors,

In the event that a situation arises that removes my independence, | will immediately notify the board of directors of the change to be
disclosed to the public, in which case | will resign from my board membership and duties in principle due to the loss of my independence,
I declare, accept and undertake above statements. 14.08.2023

Savas Atanur KAZAZ
Independent Board Member
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I/ DECLARATIONS OF INDEPENDENCE WITHIN
THE SCOPE OF THE COMMUNIQUE ON THE
DETERMINATION AND APPLICATION OF
CORPORATE MANAGEMENT PRINCIPLES

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.
ISTANBUL

MY DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE WITHIN THE SCOPE OF THE CORPORATE MANAGEMENT COMMUNIQUE

a) | have complied with the principle that there is no employment relation in a managerial position to undertake important duties and
responsibilities within the last five years between the Company, the partnerships in which the Company has management control or
significant influence, the shareholders who have management control or significant influence in the Company and the legal entities in
which these shareholders have management control, and the Company itself, its spouse and blood relatives and relatives by marriage up
to second degree and | have complied with the principle of not owning, jointly or individually, more than 5% of the capital or voting rights
or privileged shares, or not having established a material business relationship,

b) Within the last five years, | have complied with the principle of being an employee or a member of the Board of Directors in a manage-
rial position that will assume important duties and responsibilities as a partner (5% or more) in companies from which the company
purchases or sells services or products to a significant extent within the framework of the agreements made, especially the audit, (includ-
ing tax audit, legal audit, internal audit) rating and consultancy of the company, during the periods when the services or products are sold,

c) | have the professional training, knowledge and experience to duly fulfill the duties to be undertaken due to being an independent
member of the Board of Directors,

¢) Not working full-time in public institutions and organizations after being elected as a member, except for university faculty member-
ship, provided that it is in accordance with the legislation to which they are affiliated,

d) Iwillbe aresident in Turkey according to Income Tax Law (G.V.K.) dated 31.12.1960 and numbered 193

e) | have strong ethical standards, professional reputation and experience to make positive contributions to the Company's activities, to
maintain impartiality in conflicts of interest between the Company and shareholders, and to make decisions freely by taking into account
the rights of stakeholders,

f)| am able to allocate time for company affairs to the extent that | can follow the functioning of the company's activities and fully fulfill
the requirements of the duties undertaken,

g) I have not been a member of the Board of Directors of the Company for more than six years within the last ten years,

g) The same person is not serving as an independent member of the Board of Directors in more than three of the companies in which the
company or the shareholders who control the management of the company control the management and in more than five of the
companies traded on the stock exchangein total,

h) I'have not been registered and announced on behalf of the legal entity elected asa member of the Board of Directors,

In the event that a situation arises that removes my independence, | will immediately notify the board of directors of the change to be
disclosed to the public, in which case | will resign from my board membership and duties in principle due to the loss of my independence,
I declare, accept and undertake above statements. 14.08.2023

Selcuk GOKBAYRAK
Independent Board Member



VAKIF LEASING
ANNUAL REPORT / 34

ENGAGEMENT REPORT 2023

Subsidiary Company Report prepared in accordance with Article 199 of the Turkish Commercial Code

Pursuant to Article 199 of the Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102, which entered into force on July 1, 2012, the report on the relations of
Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. with its controlling shareholder T.Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O. and the subsidiaries of the controlling shareholder in
the previous activity year has been evaluated. Within the framework of the information presented to our Board of Directors, it has been
concluded that in all transactions Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. made with its controlling shareholder and the subsidiaries of the controlling
shareholder in 2023, according to the circumstances and conditions known to us at the time the transaction was made or the measure
was taken or avoided to be taken, an appropriate counter performance was provided in each transaction and there were no measures
taken or avoided to be taken that could cause damage to the company and within this framework, there were no transactions or meas-
ures that would require equalization.
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V' OTHER ISSUES

DISCLOSURES MADE WITHIN THE SCOPE OF CORPORATE MANAGEMENT COMMUNIQUE

In 2023, the Company increased its paid-in capital from TL 600,000 thousand to TL 1,000,000 thousand. The increased amount was
covered from the profit of 2022. At the Board of Directors Meeting dated 14.12.2023, the Company's paid-in capital was increased
from TL 1,000,000 thousand to TL 2,000,000 thousand. As of the date of the report, the related application has not yet been
approved by the CMB. There has been a change in the organization chart.

V In 2023, the shares of our company (VAKFN), which were traded on the Main Market of Borsa Istanbul A.S., Equity Market, started to
be traded on the StarsMarket as of 02.01.2024.

[/’ In2023, there were noresearch and development activities.

During the 2023 accounting period, Giiney Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Musavirlik A.S. conducted a limited
independent audit on 30.06.2023 and an independent audit on 31.12.2023. In addition, the Company's financial statements have
been audited quarterly by Vezin YMMA.S. within the scope of corporate tax full certification.

There are no ongoing lawsuits or legal proceedings against the Company that may have a negative impact on the Company’s finan-
cial position or results of operations.

There are no administrative and judicial sanctions imposed on the Company and the members of the management body due to
practices contrary to the provisions of the legislation.

[/ n2023, noextraordinary general assembly meeting was held.

[/~ The Company hasnot acquired any of itsown shares.

Vakif Leasing's turnover increased by 87% in 2023 compared to the previous year, rising from USD 402,095 thousand to USD 752,207
thousand. The number of transactions increased by 14% from 964in 2022 to 1,102 in 2023.

Vakif Leasing's capitalized contract amount increased by 122% in 2023 compared to the previous year and was realized as 706,912

thousand USD. In 2022, the capitalized contract amount was realized as 319,019 thousand USD. The number of capitalized contracts,
whichwas964in2022, increased by 20%to 1,157in 2023.

Aiming for disciplined growth, the Company has been selective in its growth in order to manage the pressure on profit margins,

which has increased as a result of competition, in an effective and balanced manner, while not compromising on its strategy of
building a broad-based and high quality portfolioin terms of the volume of transactions realized.

As of the end of 2023, the paid-in capital of the Company is TL 1,000,000,000 thousand and there is no evidence and opinion that the
capital is uncovered and the Company is insolvent.

Vakif Leasing
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2023 IN THE WORLD AND TURKEY / GLOBAL
ECONOMY

2023 was a year in which supply chain
disruptions, the sharp rise in energy prices caused
by the Israeli-Palestinian war and the US interest
rate cut werepricedin.
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Kaynak: Diinya Bankass, *Dinya Bankasi tahminidir.

After inflation started to rise in global economies and reached
historically high levels, interest rate hikes, especially in developed
countries, continued in 2023. However, rising interest rates also
brought fears that economies would enter recession. The first
half of 2023 was dominated by both high inflation and recession
concerns. However, towards the end of the year, inflation rates
started tofall. Moreover, the feared recession did not materialize.

In March, the largest bank bankruptcy in the US since the global
crisis took place. With the bank bankruptcy, gold prices started to
rise as the markets' safe-haven demand increased. After OPEC+s
surprise decision to cut production at the end of March, oil prices
moved upwards. The "debt limit or debt ceiling” is the upper limit
of the amount of money that the US government can borrow to
pay its debts. After the crisis was effective throughout May, an
agreement in principle was reached at the end of the month and
had a short-lived impact on global markets. The war that broke
out in the last quarter of the year as a result of the Hamas opera-
tion against Israel caused disruptions in the supply chain and
fluctuationsin commodity prices.

Interest rates in global economies have reached
historically high levels.

Due to reasons such as the post-pandemic recovery and the
upward pressure on commodity prices caused by the
Russia-Ukraine war, many central banks started to tighten mone-
tary policy with rapid interest rate hikes against rising inflation in
2022. 2023 also started with interest rate hikes. Central banks of
developed countries such as the US, the Eurozone and the UK
continued to raise interest rates to reduce inflation. However,
especially the last quarter of the year was a period when interest
rate cuts started to be discussed. Although inflation did not fall to
target levels, the slowdown in the increase in inflation and the
stagnation in growth led to discussions that interest rate cuts
might start. While the US Federal Reserve (FED) raised interest
rates by a total of 100 basis points in 2023, it was the Bank that
started the interest rate cut discussions by leaving interest rates
unchanged in the last four meetings. As a result, the FED
announced at its December meeting that the tightening may
have come toan end and interest rate cuts may start in2024.

The European Central Bank (ECB), which started raising interest
rates later than the FED, raised rates by 200 basis points in 2023.
The Bank, which last raised interest rates in September, signaled
that interest rate hikes had come to an end by keeping rates
constant in the following meetings. In addition, the Bank
announced in December that the reinvestment under the €1.7
trillion Pandemic Emergency Asset Purchase Program (PEPP) will
not continue after the end of 2024 and will reduce the reinvest-
ment of income from the PEPP program by 7.5 billion euros per
month from the second half of 2024.
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Merkez Bankalari Politika Faiz Oranlan
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Kaynak: Reuters

Another central bank that continued its tight monetary policy was the Bank of England (BoE). The BoE raised interest rates in 14
consecutive meetings starting from December 2021 and raised the policy rate to 5.25% in 2023, the highest level in the last fifteen
years, with a total of 175 basis points. Although the BoE kept interest rates unchanged in the last three meetings of the year, it
signaled that it was too early for rate cuts, stating that interest rates should be "sufficiently restrictive for a long time" to rein in
inflation.

While many central banks of developed and emerging economies raised interest rates, the Bank of Japan (BoJ) maintained its
negative interest rate. At the first meeting held in April after the new BoJ Governor Kauo Ueda took office, it was announced that
monetary policy would be comprehensively reviewed. Thus, it was thought that the foundation for the gradual termination of the
comprehensive economic support program implemented by the former Governor was laid and the first step was taken in July. At
the July meeting, the BoJ changed the yield curve control to allow the 10-year yield to fluctuate around 0.5%. This level, previously
seen as a hard limit by the BoJ, was now called the "reference point”. In October, the BoJ announced that it would adopt a more
flexible approach to the control of 10-year bond yields and that 1% would be taken as the reference point.
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TURKISH ECONOMY

The Turkish economy recorded strong growth in
thefirst three quarters of 2023.
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Turkish economy, which ended 2022 with a growth rate of 5.6%
thanks to the recovery in domestic demand and the competitive
exchange rate, grew by 4% in the first quarter of 2023 compared
to the same quarter of the previous year. The services sector
played an important role in growth in the first quarter. In the
second quarter, the growth rate was close to the first quarter as
the high inflation environment pushed demand forward, as well
as increased investments during the election period and
post-earthquake investments. In the second quarter, household
consumption once again made the largest contribution to
growth, albeit at a slightly slower pace compared to the previous
quarter. Thus, Turkish economy maintained its strong outlook in
the second quarter and grew by 3.9%, close to expectations. In
the third quarter of the year, Turkish economy grew by 5.9%,
above market expectations. Although the effects of the tighten-
ing in financial conditions will become more pronounced in the
last quarter and a slowdown is expected compared to the third
quarter, the growth rate is expected to be 4.4% or higher than the
Medium Term Program target of 4.4% in 2023, led by the contri-
butionfrom the industrial productionindexwith the contribution

Inflation remained high throughout the year.
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In 2022, inflation rose to historically high levels and fell from peak
levels in 2023. Nevertheless, inflation remained high. After
moving downwards in the first six months of the year due to the
base effect from last year, inflation moved upwards again in the
second half of the year. This was driven by tax hikes following the
earthquake disaster in February, minimum wage hikes, and the
rise in exchange rates during the year, the rise in commodity
prices and the high course of current inflation. Thus, in 2022
The Consumer Price Index (CPI), which hadrisen as high as 85.5%,
fell to 38.2% in June 2023 and ended the year at 64.77%. The
Domestic Producer Pricelndex (D-PPI), onthe other hand, experi-
enced a more pronounced retreat in 2023. In particular, the
discount on natural gas and electricity used inindustry during the
year supported the D-PPl downward. Thus, D-PPI, which ended
2022 at97.7%, ended 2023 at 44.2%.

CBRT raised the policy rate by 34 points.
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Starting 2023 with an interest rate cut in February, the Central
Bank of the Republic of Turkey (CBRT) started to tighten mone-
tary policy in June. First raising interest rates by 650 basis points in
June, the CBRT raised the policy rate by a total of 3400 basis
points in seven consecutive meetings, raising the policy rate from
8.5% to 42.5%. Following an inflation-oriented policy, the CBRT
abandoned the liraization strategy that had started to be imple-
mented in 2022 in addition to the rate hikes. As a result, the
Exchange Rate Protected Deposit account was terminated at the
end of the year. Since June, the CBRT has taken decisions on
simplification, quantitative tightening and selective lending
within the macro-prudential framework.



In 2023, developments in energy and gold imports
slowed the increasein the current account deficit.
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The current account balance, which posted a deficit of 43.1 billion
dollars in the first eleven months of 2022, increased slightly in the
same period of 2023 to 43.6 billion dollars deficit. Developments
in the two most important items that make up the foreign trade
deficit, energy and gold imports, slowed the increase in the
current account deficit. Qil prices, which declined compared to
last year due to supply-side problems triggered by concerns in the
markets about disruptions in the supply chain, led to an annual
decline in energy imports. On the other hand, the restrictions
imposed on gold imports led to an annual decline in gold imports
as of February, while the 20% additional financial obligation
imposed on gold imports in August made the annual decline in
gold imports more evident as of October. These developments on
the commodity side had a positive impact on the current account
deficit, particularly the surplus in June and October. However,
despite all these positive developments, the 12-month cumula-
tive current account deficit was higher than last year. According to
the latest November data, the 12-month cumulative current
account deficit of USD 49.6 billion will end the year above the
MTP expectation of USD 42.5 billion.
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Thebudget balance posted arecord deficitin
February dueto the earthquake.
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The budget balance, which posted a record deficit in February
due to the earthquake, continued to run a deficit in March and
April. In May, the budget balance posted a record surplus and
recovered in the second quarter of the year thanks to the rapid
increase in corporate tax as well as the increase in special
consumption tax. In June, budget expenditures increased sharply
due to the continuation of salary payments to those who are still
in retirement age (EYT) and the inability to cut expenditure items
due to the ongoing effects of the earthquake on the budget. The
SCT hike on fuel and natural gas and the increase in value-added
tax in July and August contributed to the surplus in the budget
balance. The budget, which posted a deficit in September and
October due to the transfer to BOTAS for the first time in 6
months, posted a surplus despite the continuation of the transfer
to BOTAS that started in September, especially with the contribu-
tion of the strong increase in corporate tax and the additional
motor vehicles tax. After the budget deficits of 532.4 billion TRY in
the first 11 months of 2023, the market expectation was that the
budget deficit/GDP would end the year much lower than the
6.4% level in the MTP, as the earthquake-related expenditures
were postponed to 2024 and the trend in budget performance
would continue in December. The fact that the budget deficit
figure realized only in December was well above what was
announced in the first 11 months showed that the transfer of
earthquake expenditures was realized. In this context, although
the MTP projected that the budget deficit/GDP would end the
year at 6.4%, the December figure indicates that the ratio will be
realized around 5.4%, the highest level since 2003.
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International credit rating agencies changed Turkey's credit rating and outlook.

Organization Note Investment Last Revision Date View Former Decision
Fitch B Below Tier 4 September 8, 2023 Stable Megative
S&P B Below Tier 4 November 30, 2023 Positive Stable

Moody's B3 Below Tier 5 lanuary 14, 2024 Positive Stable

Fitch affirmed Turkey's credit rating at B and revised its outlook from ‘negative' to ‘'stable’ after 2 years. The revised outlook
“reflects a return to a more conventional and consistent policy mix that reduces short-term macro-financial stability risks and
alleviates balance of payments pressures”.

S&P revised Turkey's credit rating outlook from ‘stable’ to ‘positive’ in an off-calendar review. The credit rating was affirmed as B.
In its note, S&P emphasized that the credit rating could be increased in case of a more significant decline in the current account
deficit, a decrease in dollarization and strengthening of foreign exchange reserves.

Moody's raised its outlook on Turkey's credit rating from "stable” to "positive”, citing the change in monetary policy. Moody's
stated that the change in policy increases the likelihood that inflation, which is currently quite high in the country, will come down
tomore sustainable levels. Moody's kept Turkey's credit rating unchanged at "B3".

In 2022, there was a sharp increase in the sector's net profit for the period. In 2023, after the sharp rise in the previous year, there
was a significant decline in the annual rate of increase in profit. Thus, the sector's net profit for the period, which increased by
366.4% in 2022 increased by 37.6% in November 2022. The capital adequacy ratio, which stood at 19.46% at the end of 2022, was
realized as 18.29%in November 2023.
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VAKIF LEASING IN 2023

Vakif Leasings turnover increased by 87% in 2023 compared to the previous year, rising from USD 402,095 thousand to USD 752,207
thousand. The number of transactions increased by 14% from 964in 2022 to 1,102 in 2023.

Vakif Leasing's capitalized contract amount increased by 122% in 2023 compared to the previous year and was realized as 706,912
thousand USD. In 2022, the capitalized contract amount was realized as 319,019 thousand USD. The number of capitalized contracts,
whichwas 964in2022, increased by 20%to 1,157in 2023.

Thousand USD-VAKIF LEASING

Period 2023 2022 Increase %
First Quarterly Period 107,919 47,366 127.8
Second Quarterly Period 178,927 61,265 192,1
Third Quarterly Period 192,885 89,685 1151
Fourth Quarterly Period 227,181 120,703 88,2
TOTAL 706,912 319,019 121,60
Number of Contracts 1,157 264 20,0
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Vakif Leasing is one of the oldest players in the Turkish financial leasing sector and has continued to play a pioneering role in the introduc-
tion and development of financial leasing since 1988.

Having intermediated USD 752 million worth of fixed asset investments in 2023, Vakif Leasing has made significant contributions to the
development of our country's economy, primarily by supporting SMES.

Aiming to provide financial intermediation to SMEs and investors in the commercial segment, which constitute a significant portion of
its customer portfolio, Vakif Leasing continues onits way by increasing its market share in the sector.

With 35 years of experience, sector knowledge and solution-oriented employees, Vakif Leasing offers alternative financing options. In
2023, Vakif Leasing increased its assets to TL 26,233 million with an operational volume of USD 752 million, its financial leasing receiva-
bles to TL 26,671 million with an increase of 147%, and its shareholders equity to TL 2,868 million with an increase of 116% compared
to the previous year and continued its growth trend. In line with its sustainable targets in the coming period, Vakif Leasing aims to
concentrate especially on production machinery and aims to increase its market share in 2024 by supporting investments regardless of
scaleandsector.

Our goals for 2024 are to increase the number of new customers and to grow our operational volume in a healthy manner, taking into
account Turkey's domestic market growth and commercial loan demand.

Vakif Leasing, which is represented by branches in Ankara, Izmir, Adana, Bursa and Antalya in order to provide on-site service and rapid
response to investors, continues to work towards achieving its targets with its wide customer portfolio and service network throughout
the country, backed by the corporate strength of Vakifbank's nearly one thousand branches.

With the increasing awareness of our branches, we have experienced significant increases in our sales and marketing volume over the
years. The increasing cooperation with our Bank and the transformation realized by our management in our company has had visible
effects on our Company's financials. As Vakif Leasing, we completed 2023 by concluding 1100 contracts and USD 750 million worth of
contracts. We took our place among the top 3 companies in the sector in terms of asset size and increased our market share from 5% to
15%.
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' KEY FINANCIAL
INDICATORS AND

RATIOS

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

TOTAL ASSETS
(Thousand TL)

26,232,572 +%9 8 . 4

6,296,924 Vakif Leasing's total assets
increased by 98.4%
compared to the previous
year and amounted to TL
26,232,572 thousand.

3,031,147

LEASE TRANSACTIONS (net)
(thousand TL)

19,533,950 +% 1 3 8 ° 1

Vakif Leasing's total
4,769,551 leasing transactions
increased by 138.1% year-
on-year to TL 19,533,950
thousand.

2,579,147

CREDITS
RECEIVED

YOREXWAK:

+%85.6

5,133,454 VakifLeasing's total credits
increased by 85.6% compared
to the previous year and
thousan

reached TL 20,143,713

2,600,857

Vakif Leasing

FutureTowardsYou
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KEY FINANCIAL
INDICATORS AND

RATIOS

KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(Thousand TL)

2,862,941 +%1 1 6. 1

702,444 Vakif Leasing's total
shareholders' equity increased
by 116.1% to

TL 2,862,941 thousand
compared to previous year.

283,345

GROSS OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS
(Thousand TL)

1,076,998 +% 3 7 3 ° 8

Vakif Leasing's gross operating
129,100 profit increased by 373.8% to TL
1,076,998 thousand compared to
the previous year.

NET PROFIT

(Thousand TL)

1,443,089 +% 1 78 o 3

Vakif Leasing's net profit
increased by 178.3%
compared to the previous year
thousa

and realized as TL 1,443,089

Vakif Leasing

FutureTowardsYou
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' KEY FINANCIAL
INDICATORS AND

RATIOS

KEY RATIOS

Return on Assets (ROA) - (Profit (Loss) for the Period / Average Assets)

Vakif Leasing

FutureTowardsYou
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BASIN ACIKLAMASI

JCR Eurasia Rati
i ",‘;'

RATING NOTIFICATION FORM
Rating Agency : JCR AVRASYA DERECELENDIRME A. .
Rated Organization : Vakif Finansal Kiralama Anonim irketi
Address : Maslak Mahallesi Tasyoncasi Sokak No:1/F F2 Blok Kat:2 34485 Sariyer, Istanbul-Turkey
Telephone and Fax No : 0212 35256 73 - 0212 352 56 75
Date : 26 / 04 / 2023
Subject : Article 26 of the CMB Communiqué Serial VI, No 51
CMB - Accounting Standards Department
Merkezi Kayit Kurulusu A. . - Public Disclosure Platform
"Vakif Finansal Kiralama A. ." has been evaluated by JCR Eurasia.
Smooth development of operational and financial performance in 2022, TOA ratio in 2022, below industry
averages, supporting asset quality, set and liability structure and increasing share of local currency loans
mitigating credit risk, -owned leasing company, in the financial sector, together with a well-established
position in the sector, High level of compliance with Corporate Governance Practices as a publicly traded
company, experience of senior management and continuity of cocaine risk management practices,
Challenging macro environment and highly competitive market conditions.
In essence, within the scope of the above issues, "Vakif Finansal Kiralama A. ™s Long Term National
Corporate Credit Rating has been revised from AA- (tr) to AA (tr) and all other ratings and outlooks are as follows.
Long Term National Corporate Credit Rating: AA (tr) / (Stable Outlook)
Short Term National Corporate Credit Rating: J1+ (tr) / (Stable Outlook)
Long Term International Foreign Currency Corporate Credit Rating: BB /
(Negative Outlook) Long Term International Local Currency Corporate Credit Rating: BB / (Negative Outlook)
Sincerely,
JCR AVRASYA DERECELENDIRME A. .
Zeki Metin COKTAN
Assistant General Manager

evket GULE

Assistant General Manager

COPYRIGHT NOTICE
Telif hakks © 2007, JCR Carasia Rating. Maslak Mahatesl Tagyoncass Sokak No: 1 / F F2 Blok Kat: 2 34485 Sarryer / Istanted / Turklye Teleton: +90 (212) 352.56.73 Faks: 490 (212) ISJ 56,75
Lainsiz cogattiimas: yasaktar. TOm hakdary sakbchir, TUm Sligier JCR Furasks Rating'in g ve Sirket bigt /
Ancak, K’Rluvuh Rating du biigilerin gercehidind, dodrufudunu ve yeteriiigind gavanti etmez. JCR Eurasia mmmndmmhﬂ. Biv menkul lumunnw.xonm nnam-m Mln
ve b i ve ferhangd b menkul kiymetin ahnmas:, elde tutulmas: veyas satimas: veyas tabvil karlmas: igin bie yartirn
mmvk{‘ yo Py ), BOOK ( e ) f tescil edien ve ar ve uiy hbv!wuw.
Wke ve y '] 1 gergevesinde 3! i3 olup, NRSRO (Ulusal Olarak e Kurloyw) P dediidir.

MR/ S wwwe Jerer.com. tr
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Building a better
working world

(Convenience translation of a report on financial statements originally prepared and issued in Turkish)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Vakaf Finansal Kiralama Anonim Sirketi,

A) Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

1)  Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. (“the
Company™) which comprisc the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023 and the statement
of profit or loss, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity, statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary
of significant accounting policics.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Vakif Finansal Kiralama A.S. as at 31 December 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with the Communique on Financial Leasing, Factoring and Uniform
chart of Accounts which shall be applied by Finance and Saving Finance Companices published in Official
Gazette dated December 24, 2013 and numbered 28861 and Regulation, Communique and Circular on
Accounting Policies of Financial Leasing, Factoring, Finance and Saving Finance Companies and their
Financial Statements and announcements published by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Authority
("BRSA”) together referred as “BRSA Accounting and Financial Reporting Legislation™ which includes
provisions of Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”) for the matters which are not regulated by
the aforementioned regulations,

2)  Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Independent Auditing Standards (InAS) which are part of the
Turkish Auditing Standards as issucd by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards
Authority of Turkey (POA). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Independent Auditors (Code of
Ethics) as issucd by the POA, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitics in accordance with
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

3)  Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thercon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Key Audit Matter

How the kev audit matter addressed in the audit

Impairment of finance lease receivables

The determination of impairment of financial
lcasing receivables and accounting of losses
related to receivables is an important
jurisdiction for management due to the
importance and timing of balances and the
complexity and subjectivity in determining the
credit worthiness for receivables that do not
comply with the timing specified in the BRSA
Accounting and  Financial  Reporting
Legislation. The mentioned risk is the inability
to determine the financial leasing receivables
which arc impaired and not to allocate
reasonable impairment provision for the
related receivables. Provisions for financial
lease receivables are disclosed in Note 6.

In addition to our current audit procedures, our audit
procedures include the assessment and testing of the
operational effectiveness of key controls in place to
determine the allocation, accounting, monitoring,
derecognition of financial leasing receivables and
impaired finance lease receivables and their
provisions. In addition, in accordance with our risk
assessment, whether the financial leasing receivables
selected through sampling is subject to impairment
according to the BRSA Accounting and Financial
Reporting Legislation, and the adequacy of the
provision for related reccivables in case of
impairment is evaluated.

4)
Statements

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the “BRSA Accounting and Financial Reporting Legislation™, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
frec from material misstatement, whether duc to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability ta
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Thosc charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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5)  Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
In an independent audit, as auditors our responsibilitics are:

Our objectives arce to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issuc an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with InAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with InAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and asscss the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether duce to
fraud or crror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the cffectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to cvents
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures arc
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achicves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, related
safeguards.

&%)
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

B) Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) Pursuant to the fourth paragraph of Article 402 of the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) No.
6102: no significant matter has come to our attention that causces us to believe that the Company’s
bookkeeping activities for the period | January 2023 - 31 December 2023 are not in compliance
with TCC and provisions of the Company’s articles of association in relation to financial
reporting.

2)  Pursuant to the fourth paragraph of Article 402 of the TCC: the Board of Directors provided us
the necessary explanations and required documents in connection with the audit.

3)  Auditors’ report on Risk Management System and Committee prepared in accordance with
paragraph 4 of Article 398 of TCC is submitted to the Board of Directors of the Company on
February 6, 2024,

The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Emre Celik.

Giiney Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Miisavirlik Anonim Sirketi
A member firm of Ernst& Young Global Limited

Emre Celik, SMMM
Partner

6 Fcbruary 2024
Istanbul, Turkey
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VAKIF FINANSAL KiRALAMA A.S.

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AS AT

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (BALANCE SHEET)
{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwizse indicated)

Current Feriod Prior Period
ASSETS 31 Decemher 223 31 Dewember 102
L TI. Fi Todal TIL. Fi Tadal
L CASIL CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BALANCES AT CEMNTRAL BANK 4 1605681 (REIR 2,737,177 LSRESAS  LIS6E0d  ET42,13%
1. FINARCLAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Nel) ] - BIEITE BT - - -
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS
FINARCLAL ASSE 1 E THROUGH
IFTHER CUMPR Net) L] L0456 - 104,561 46,7THI - 46,781
fu FINANCLAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (Xet} T 153 2AHE 69362 PRBOE2IAT  A0IRIAY  LIELEID  E29E R4
Factoaung Receivables s . - . . s
I Thscommited Factannp Revevalbles (Nel) - - - - - -
2 Owber Factonng Recevables - N - N - -
Savings Financing Becenvables - - - - - -
I Pooled Fusds
2 Fageity . . . . =
Fusangmg Loans - - - - - -
I Consumer Loans - - - - - -
I Crodst Cards = - - - - =
¥ Inssallment Commercial Loans
Leme Recervables (MNeth T 13 260 37 B, 26 053 19.533.950 4067095 Q106438 EJ03.2E3
I Fisnee Lesse Receivables 19.316,73% 7354506 16671258 606482 A 60876 |05 A58
¥ Opeeraticnal Lease Roceivables
3 Unesmsed Income (-) {6,046, 847) 1050 853 (AR 005 (RO0068T) (S8 AEE) (2508175
55 Ouber Fmacsal Assets Measured al Amortised Cost
5 Mes-Perbomung Leans T R2ITR 137,535 ENT 45,157 174,537 220604
57 Expecied Credit Loss (-} ¢ Specific Provissons (-] 7 [ A {107 570 (147 A0 {20.71% 98,405 (12134
VI INVESITMENTS IN ASSULLATES, 51 BSIDARIES AN
JOINT VENTURES - - - =
Tnvesimenis sencibes (Mei) - = = = = -
IvesiEnemns im Subssdisses (Me) - - - - - -
Jomnily Controlled Partnershups. (Joist Vemturesh (Nt}
TANGIELE ASSETS (Nel) I5R.%74 - 158,974 TR - 71,749
INTANGIBELE ASSETS AND GOODWILL (Net) 1121 = 1111 L6} - 1443
INVESTMENT PROFERTY (MNet) - = = - = =
CURKEENT TAX ASSETS 1 550,544 - RS 5e4 LR - 56,138
DEFERRED TAX ASSET 1 - - - - -
THER ASSETS L ] 477,754 1,010,495 2AE9. 240 BO275Y  1054EL6 1857, %R
SURTOTAL 16220, 150 9,962,792 26, 18307 SOV EIPAEMY  LEEW]STI
AL ASSETS ULASSIFIED AS HELDY FOR SALE AND INSCONTINUED
OFERATIONS (Net) 10 40,500 44,500 118,480 126480
150 Held for Sake 49, S0 45,500 125 480 128 480

132 MNow-Uweenl Assets Froo D 1 €3 - - - - - -

-

TOTAL ASSETS 16,269, TER 9862, 792 26,151,572 S HISAT]  &IS4030 1R I19.E2]

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 (o 56 from an integral part of these financial siaiements,
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VAKIF FINANSAL KiRALAMA AS,

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AS AT
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (BALANCE SHEET)

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira C7T1") unless otheraase indicated)

Current Feriod Prior Period
LIABILITLES 31 December 2023 A1 DPecomber 2022
Ml 1L ki Tavial T KU Twtal
L LOANS HECEIVED s 12034420  H.0I9.257 20,145,713 BAILERS  LINTTIE  N0EERG0E
(18 FACTORING PAYABLES - - - - - -
L LIARILTTIES FROM THE SAVING FUND RO, - - - - " -
", LEASE PAVARLES 14 Bl el 150 15
LD MAERELABLE 3ECURITTES (™) [ B T ATE THIATS =
VI FINANCTIAL LIABILITTES AT FAIR YALUE THROUGH PROFIT OF LO5SS - - - -
VIL DBERIVATIVE FINANCLAL LIAEILITIES - - - - - -
V. FROVIRNNS i7 18199 0,457 30,65 EEIRS 1T FL %
&1 Provision for Restructuring .
Az Feterves For I:Illphﬂ'ﬂe Benefits 24,522 = o e 13927 E 15,927
B3 Ceneral Loss Loss Provisions T 3677 01407 15174 2258 w7 & 565
B Chiber previmons - - . -
(L CUHRENT TAX LIABILITIES i1} 11718 - 12718 =Ban - LA |
b BEFERRED TAY LIAHILITY 11 170447 = 171,447 LRt L] s 5030
XL SUBORIMYATED DEET - - - - - -
X, OTHER LIARILITIES is 1668 09T 452,413 I, 050,505 AEAS SEd, 168 E,5T%
SUBRTOTAL 47548 BALLINT IhAE0A3 TOMESET  4B009RE 11FWME
LIARILTTIES ATED Ty ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND
XL MESCONTINUED OFERATIONS (Set) s - - -
121 Beld For Sale - - - - = -
123 Relaed 1o Desconhnued Operatiom - - - - - -
X, EQUITY ¥ LB6L51 - B U = 1AM
(RN Tsused capitl 0, 0o, 00 - 1 e D0 R0, D0 . G0, Dl
Lz Cupiral Reserves 13,310 - 13,300 1663 - L5662
1421 Faputy Shewe Prominmns [ - [ 1364 - [ ]
422 Shone Camcellation Prafils
1zs Cither Capitial Reserves [ PR2E =44 206 et
Crher Accimmlated Compechensive [aoome That Will Wot Be Reclasificd Tn Profit
143 o Livia 195, 204 = [ Lualiee | 1xo2e = 102,07
Orber Accummuilated Comprehensive Iadome That Will Be Reclassificd In Prafit Or
144 Laria - - - - - -
145 FProlt Bowrves 200348 - 201 148 0 ART - 36K
1451 Legal Brervis A i % - LI 0157 - m, 7T
1452 Saannory Heserves - - - - -
(] Extiscedinary Reserves 14, 5R1 [[:2 Reot] THE T, 5
1454 Crher Prafit Resorved - - - - -
46 Prold or Loss [ LY (EEEN 51K 566 SR S
(R Prior Years” Profit or Loss
1462 izl Peiuos] Ket Peolil of Lioss b a1 0ER - 1 443 fE5g 51K 566 - IR S
TOTAL LIARILITIES 1TEI9IT5  RAILIBT  DAJAZET R 4ITEGG  4.80L9RS 13,219,851

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 to 56 from an integral part of these financial statements.



VAKIF LEASING 5 8
ANNUAL REPORT / 2023 :

ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

VAKIF FINANSAL KiRALAMA AS,

DECEMBER 31, 2023 AS AT
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“T1L") unless otherwise indicated)

Current Feriod Friar Period
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS A1 December 2023 3 December 2022
Mg T Fi® Tatal Th. F Tadal

I TREEVOCARLE FACTORING TRANSACTIONS
1L REVOCARLE FACTORING TRANSACTIONS - B - - - -
1. COLLATERALS RECEIVED 4 QRSET, 184 T4LETAM EMERLIS4 ATATE RES6N ER0 1314355
. COLLATERALS GIVEMN - . - - - -
V. COMMITMENTS M4 LA 2,595,0KE SJTANE 160556 1856110 LR
ol Irrevoeshle Commstements 456,767 1.1 XSG THLISY 95089 116572
L Revocable Conmiments LaxEa21 1068 570 1238103 1.260.721 A9
6.2.1 Lease Commitnenls (KL EH | A K 570 1,238 T7% 1260721 TAGD A
201 Fmange Lease Compiemenis [Rs Ak | 1O6E 570 1258175 1.200,721 2 A AR
212 Operazonal Lease Commualments - - - - -
622 Oiber Revocable Comnulments
VI DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
A Denvative Fmarcual Instraments Held For Hedgmg
T Faar Value Hedges
T1.2  Cash Flow Tledges
T3 Hedges of et levestment m Foreign Operabions
T2 Derivative Finarcial lestransents Held For Trading
121 Forward Buy o Sl Transactioss
T.2.2 Swap PurchasesSakes
1.2.3 Option Purchases or Sales
124 Fuhses parchises ks
715 Oibers N . - = = =
VI ITEMS HELIN IS CUSTOIY SN 14A4%7 A7, TRL b B MOT161 15.720.1%% 261451568 A5 450

TOTAL OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEAMS B40498, T35 191, 314.98F  MIDAOEEHT GLIGRIRG 117065, 368 17733 7544

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 o 56 from an integral part of these financial siatements.
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VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA AS.

DECEMBER 31, 2023 FOR THE YEAR OF
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira ("TL") unless otherwise mdicated)

Carrent Periad Prior Periad
I Jamusry - I Jamusry -
STATEMENT OF PRONFTT OR Lid5S Ml 3 Decwmber 2013 3 Decwmbsr I02
I. OPERATING INCOME AETeALY L0748
FACTORING INCOME - -
1.1 Factorng Inlorest Incaome -
L Dhscamntes] -
{1 nher -
1.2 Factoring Fee aeed Comemission lncons: -
1.2 Disconned -
122 Orther .
INCOME FROM FINANCING LOANS -
1.3 Irtevest Income Froos Financng Losss
1.4 Fee and Conusnsacn [neoms From Fusanang Loans . -
LEASE INCONME AETEE1 L A07484
1.5 Fananse Lease Incons 3 803 30 1482375
(K Openticnal Lesie Income -
1.7 Fee aad Conssnssios neoms From Lease Operations LF73 N
SAVING FINANCE INCOME -
1.8 Diwi s Received from Savings Finamcime Receiimbles -
|.% Fees and Comenisscms Received from Savimgs Fmancing Aciivities -
(I8 FINANCE COST () (LETEATE) (0T
21 Dividends Ghven froan the Savmes Fund Pool - -
2.1 Itewest Expenses o Funds. Bogrowed {ZA51 535} (TELTTEY
23 Ltceal Expenaes on Facteong Paalles -
24 Lemse lntewesl Fapenses [R5} G
24 Entewist Expenacs on Secunities lussd [ R}
6 Anher Interest Expese -
2% Fees s L pipenisssces Paid (R} (AR SE1 )
. GROSS FROFIT (LOSS) (1+11) 1,253,657 2T AR
. OFERATING EXTENSES () 0 (1T6EM} [ DRt
i1 Personne] Exponses [1a7 528) (47752}
1.1 Provwaon Expense for Employment Tomunation Bencfite LTI} ]
1.3 Rescarch and developaacnt cxpenss -
44 Creneral Operanmg Expenscs (0240} (METI )
14 nher -
V. GROSS OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) (1IT+1V) LTSS 17,198
VL OTHER OFERATING INCOME b (FTFTTY ATLART
(N Iratexest Income on FBhanks LR T Pl
6.2 Inftewest Income on Mmketable Seounties Portlobo 18,558 -
6.3 Dovadend Incomn 375 250
6.4 Chumn Agwang 6 Capaeal Markets Trassachons .
o5 Demvatnve Finsncml Tenmactsons” Cauns 1363
s v Exchasgpe Cimins AT AR
6.7 LTt
VIL ISP EXPENSES 7 51,50} (30 48y
71 Specific Provissoms [ELRELT (36 197
7.2 Allwsmnces For Expecied Credit Loswes -
7.3 Chevmerall Lean Loss Provissons (RS (383
74 - -
VI OTHER OFERATING EXPENSES () I (7] RN A
8.1 et in Woalue of Secusilaes (H2a57)
8.2 Enparmnest in ¥ alue of Noa-Cumenl Assets
8.3 Capital Marker Transactions Loases .
8.4 Loss Arizimg from Derivwtive Finascial Trascaction MOTE)
B3 Forepn Exchasge Losses - -
B Oher [754) W
Ix. NET OFERATING PROFIT {LOSE) (V4 Ll 1856000 S9LEIE
. AMOUNT IN EXCESSE RECORIED A% v AFTER SMERGER -
Xl -
X -
LY bR ] [LIESL]
* 10 [LIERDHY (ITAZ4
14.1 Cerest Tax Proviskos (541,407 FTAM
14.2 Expense Effect of Deferred Tax (11,5} (T )
14.3 -
3 LIRS 5 TSG OPERATHONS (XITEXTV) [RTLE RPN
N IHSCONTINUED OFERATIONS - -
16.1 Incomme o Assets Held foo Sale -
6.2 Ciam om Sale of Associates, Subsadimees and Jomtly Cs aities { Ferinl Venhires) -
163 -
AVIL -
11 Expemse om Asscts Peld foa Sale -
172 Loss om Sale of Associabes, Subsidisries smd Lointly Contolled Fnditses (ot Venmues] -
173 Oher Expenses o Dacomtinued Operations
NATIL  PROFIT {LOSS) OX DISCONTINUED OFERATIONS BEFORE TAX {(XVI-XVIT)
R1AW TAX PROVISION FOR INSCONTINUED OPERATIONS (=) -
191 Crerrent Tax Previssos -
%2 Expemse Effect of Delemed Tax -
153 Ecowme Edfect of Defermed Tax -
L MET PERICHY PROFTTLOSS FROM DESCONTINUED GFERATIONS (AW TIEEXIN) -
AAL NET PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (XVEXX) LA ERLESY
Famnmgs {Loss) Per Share 1441 ['Eit]

The accompanying noles set oul on pages 10 1o 56 from an integral part of these financial statements,
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ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA AS.

DECEMBER 31, 2023 FOR THE YEAR OF
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise indicated)

PFROETHLAASS ANDOTHER COMPEEHESSIVE INCUOME STATEMEN] Curreml Feriod Prior Poriod
1 January - 1 Jamuary -
Nate A1 Trecembeer 2023 A1 December 2022
I. CURRENT PERIOD PROFIT/LOSS 1,445 080 L1850
1. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCUAE &5, 265 71475
2.1 Trenas ihat may sol be Reclassiled subseqecnily io Frofit oF Loss B3 265 TILATS
211 Tanpible Assets Revalmation Increases Thecreases 9 368 A (R
212  Imasngpble Asscts Revalusiion Ipereases Dacreases - -
213 Emploves Benelits Be-Monunng Loss/Iecome T 3,728} (40040
214 her Comprehensive Income that wall nod be Reclassified 10 Profit or Loss 51,246 1B 06T
215 Taxes related with Comprebensive Income that will ned be
Reclassifiad to Profit or Loss {5.621) (23800
LY ltems that may be Keclassified subsequenily to Profit or Loss = -
221 Foreign Exchange Differences for Foreign Currency Transactions -
222 Fimancial Assets for Which the Fair Value Difference is Becognised
Throwegh Otker Comprehensive Income Valiation and'or Clssificatson
Incomes Expensss of Financis] Assets
223 Cash Flow Hedge Income T osees
224 Investmest Risk Hedge Income Expenses Related to the Overseas. Comguny -
123 Oiher Comprehensive Income that may be Reclassified suhsequently 1o Profic or Loss -
226 Taxes related with Comprebensave Income that may be Keclassalied
subsequenily o Profit or Loss
UL TOTAL COMPRENENSIVE INCOME (1-11) 1.526.354 S, 241

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 w0 56 fom an integral part of these Onancial stacmenis.
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VAKIF LEASING

ANNUAL REPORT / 2023 63

ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

VAKIF FINANSAL KiRALAMA AS.

DECEMBER 31, 2023 FOR THE YEAR OF
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise indicaved)

Current Period Frior Period
I January - 1 January -
Nale 31 December 2025 31 December 2022

Al CASTI FLOWS FROM OFPERATING ACTIVITIES
1 Operating Profit before Changes is Operating Asiets and Liabilites 1,571,958 o 2R0
LLL Interests Bocgived Leasing Incomss 4014175 Pl 4
L1L2 Inperest Paid Lemsing Expense (2.250.458) (65T, 130
L13 Duvidend Boocived Ts 230
L14  Foos amd Commssions Kecorved LORLE 15,126
115 {her Bevenue Gamed 1,710 10 455
L6 Collectsons from Prorly Wintten=ofT Dowbiful Receivables 7 20,0665 9,575
1.1.7  Payments to Personre] and Service Suppliers {117, 868) (52, 140
L= Taxes Paid (44T.515) {MEE 13T
118 Oxher {114.351) (09,570)
1.2 Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities [LTTT, ki) 1491 318
121 Met (Increase) Thecrease in Faclonmg Recenvables - =
121 et {Increxse VDecrease 1n Fimance Loans - =
121 Met {Increase) Dectease in Lease Recenvables {1 1080, 193) [3.231,258)
122 Met (Incresse ) Decrease 1o Ocher Assets {615.674) {1395 393)
1.2.3  Net IncreasedDecrease) in Factonng Pavables - -
123 Net Incresse{Decnease) i Lease Pavables 15683 363
124 Net Increase {Decreasc) 1n Funds Bommowed B.926, 732 5574 283
125 Net Incresse{Decrease) in Liabilities Due N B
126 Net Inerease [Decnease) i Other Laabalimes aTe 412 543 373
I Net Cash Frovided from Cperating Activities (405, 045) 1,711,590

I, CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
1 Acquisition of Investments, Associates and Subsadanes - -
12 Dusposal of Investments, Associabes and Subsslanc - -
23 Purchases of Propemny and Lquipment 89 (TE.810) [67.226)
b | Dasposals aff Property amd Equapmint 89 5304 1,358
25 Purchase of fnanceal assets atl Gar value theough other comprehensive income (57,780 [20,347)
24 Sale of financial aszets 1 fair vales through other conprehensive income - =
7 Purchase of financial assets al anvwortired cost - -
h¥ | Sale of finarcial assets a1 amostized cost - -
9 Caher {623, 580) -
L1 Nt Cash (Used in)Trovided from Investing Activities [ TH4 BEG) (B6,215)

. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
31 Cash Obinimed from Fends Bosrowed apd Secuiises Isswed T 4TY -
12 Cash Used for Repavment of Funds Borrowed asd Secunties hisued - -
i3 Besued Capita] Instnansesis - -
i4 Drvidends Paid - -
3 Favments fior Finanor Leases (2157 (354)
i Chher 12 3,105
. Net Cash Provided from Financing Activities T.X76 TR
[ Effect of Change in Forelgn Exchange Rate om Cash asd Cash Equivalents 4IR.028 E08 029
Y. Net IncressedDecrease) in Casl and Cach Equivalents [ERC ] 1,961,164
VI Cash and Cash Equivalests at Beginning of ihe Period b ] 1,740,246 TTH082
VI Cashoand Cach Equivalests st End of ihe Period P ] 2,750,249 2,740,246

The sccompanying notes set out on pages 10 to 56 from an integral part of these financial statements,
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ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA AS.

DECEMBER 31, 2023 FOR THE YEAR OF
STATEMENT OF PROFIT DISTRIBUTION FOR THE PERIOD

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira ("TL™) unless otherwise indicated)

Auilatedl Andided
Current period Prior period
31 December 2023(%) 31 December 2022

I DISTRIBUTION OF CTURRENT FERIOD PROFIT (=)
L1 CURRENT PERIOD PROFIT 2056391
12 TAXES AND DUES PAYABLE (-) (613,302) i
121 Corporate Tax {Income Tax) (541 40Ty (%7, -l"-ﬁ'l
1122 Witholding Tax . E
123 Other taes aned daes {T1.595) [ T5 BOR)
A NET PERIOD PROFIT (1.1 - 1.3) 1,443 80 £18, 560

13 FRIOR YEARS LOSSES (<) i "
14 FIRST LEGAL RESERVE (-] ’ =nh
| B OTHER STATUTORY RESERVES NEEDELD TCr BE KEFT IN THE COMPANY (-} - -

5. DISTRIBUTABLE NET PERIOD PROFIT [{A-1.3+1.441.5)] (**) 1,443, 080 401,637

(K] FIEST INVIDEND TO SHAREHOLIDERS (-) - =
[N To Cramers of Ordsnary Skanes - -
162 To Cramers of Preferred Stocks - =
163 ToOrmers of Preferred Stocks (Presemptive Rights) - =
64  To Profit Sharing Bomds

165 ToOwners of the profit Joss Shanng Cemificases - -
| Byl IHVIDENSD TO PERSUONNEL (-} - -
18 DIVIDEND TO BOARD OF IMRECTORS (=) - =
19 SECOND IMVIDEND TO SHAREHOHLDERS (-)

&0 ToOwners of Ordmary Skares - -
192 To Crmers of Preferred Stocks - -
193  Tolrmmers of Preferred Stocks (Pre-emptive Rights) - -
194  To Profit Sharing Bomds

195 ToOrmers of the profit Joss Shanng Certificates

LI STATUS RESERVES (-) - =
B} EXTRADRINNARY RESERVES - -
112 OTHER RESERVES - =
113 SPECIAL FUKDS

IHSTRIEUTIN FROM EESERVES -

IMSTRIBUTED RESERVES

SHARE TO SHAREHOLIDERS {-)

To Cramers of Ordsnary Skanes - -
To Cramers of Preferred Stocks - -
To Cramers ol Preferred Stocks (Presempltive Rights) . .
Ta Profit Shanng Bonds

To Cramers of the profin Toss Shanng Cemilicases - -
SHARE TCy FPERSONMNEL (-} - -
SHARE TO BOARD OF IMEECTORS {-) - -

b bl bl

B ab B R B R b fa —
e e b =

b B B Bl b B

[LIR EARNINGS FER SHARE

il TOOWNERS OF STOCKS - -
32 TOOWKERS OF STOCKS (%)

TOOWKERS OF PREFERRED STOCKS

T OWKERS OF PREFERRED STOCKS (%)

IV, DIVIDEXD PER SHARE - -

4.1 T OWNERS OF STOCKS

42 T OWNERS OF STOCKS (%) - -
43 TOOWNERS OF PREFERRED STOCKS - -
44 TO OWNERS OF PREFERRED STOCKS (%5)

=} The Company s General Assembly has not been held vet and in the profin dismibution tble ondy ':|'Ih|.111"l.lli‘|11|l.- profits hus h\.-l.'“
specified.

{**) It has been considered by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency that the income amounts related 1o deferred tax assets
cannot be qualified as cash or intemal resources, and therefore the pan of the period profit anising from these assets should mot be
subject 1o profit distribution and capital increase, As of 31 December 2023, the Company has no deferred tax income arising from
deferred tax assets (31 December 2022: no deferred tax income ansing from delferred lax asels),

The accompanying notes set out on pages 10 to 56 from an integral part of these financial statements.
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ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S,

DECEMBER 31, 2023 FOR THE YEAR OF
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (7TL") unless otherwise imdicated)

1- ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY
Brief history

Vakif Finansal Kiralama Anonim Sirken (“the Company™) was cstablished on 15 September 1985 and
operates in accordance with “Finance Lease, Factoring and Financing Companics Law™ published on
the Official Gazette no, 28496 dated 13 December 2012 and “Regulation on Principles for Establishment
and Operations of Finance Lease, Factoring and Financing Companies™ of Banking Regulation and
Supervision Agency (“BRSA™).

The Company is a subsidiary of Tirkive Vakiflar Bankas: Tirk Anomm Ortakhg: (*Vakifbank™) and
the 37.95% of the outstanding shares of the Company are publicly traded at Istanbul Stock Exchange
{“ISE™). The Company has no preferred stock.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company has 82 employees, (31 December 2022: 76),

The registered address of the Company is as follows:

Inkilap Mahallesi Dr, Adnan Biiyiikdeniz Caddes:

No:7A Ig Kapi No:9

Umraniye/Tstanbul

Tiirkive

Ownership Structure

The ultimate sharcholder having direct or indirect control over the shares of the Company is Vakifbank.
As of 31 December 2023, and 2022, the share capital and ownership structure of the Company are as

follows:
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Share Amount  Share Percentage Share Amount  Share Percentage
Sharcholder (TL) (%) (TL) (%)
Vakifbank 620,456 6H2.05 372274 6205
Public Shares " 379,544 37.95 227.726 37.95
Paid-in capital (***) 1,000,000 100 600,000 100

o The Fatia is calculated from the shanes of the Company registened a8 sanbal Takas ve Saklama Bankaa A 5, (Takasbank™)
] Wi the decision taloem om December 14, 2023, the Boawd of Directors of de Company deoded b0 incresse its paid-m capital by 100% nights issie. For this purpose, the Company applied

o UMY on Ly 5, 2024, A of the repornt date, the application has ol been spracved vet

10
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ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA AS.

DECEMBER 31, 2023 FOR THE YEAR OF
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL™) unless otherwise indicated)

2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.1  Basis Of Presentation
2.1.1 Accounting standards

The Company preparcd accompanying financial statements in accordance with to the “Regulation on
Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing
Companies™ and the “Communiqué on Uniform Chart of Accounts and Prospectus to be implemented
by Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies and on Financial Statements to be announced
to Public” published in the Official Gazerte dated 29 June 2021 and numbered 31526 and Turkish
Financial Reporting Standards published by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards
Institute {POAAS), (“TFRS™) and other regulations, communiqués, and circulars announced by the
Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency ("BRSA”) (all together "BRSA Accounting and Financial
Reporting Standards™) in respect of accounting and financial reporting.

The financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023 are approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company and authorized for issue as at 6 February 2024, The General Assembly and
or legal authorities have the discretion of making changes in the accompanying financial statements
after their issuance.

The accompanying financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis as adjusted for the
effects of inflation that lasted until 31 December 2004, except for the financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income and assets held for sale which are measured at their fair values
unless reliable measures are available.

Entitics whose functional currency 1s the currency of a hypeninflationary economy present their financial
statements in terms of the measuring unit current at the end of the reporting period according to “TAS
29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflation Economies™. Based on the announcement made by Public
Oversight, Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (POA) on 23 Movember 2023, entitics
applying Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (TFRSs) are required to present their financial
statements by adjusting for the impact of inflation for the annual reporting period ending on or after 31
December 2023, in accordance with the accounting principles specified in TAS 29, In the same
announcement, it was stated that institutions or organizations authorized to regulate and supervise in
their respective scope might determine different transition dates for the implementation of inflation
accounting, and in this context, Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (BRSA) announced that
financial statements of banks, financial leasing, factoring, financing, savings financing and asset
management companics as of 31 December 2023 would not be subjeet to the inflation adjustment in
accordance with BRSA Board decision on 12 December 2023,

Accordingly, "TAS 29 Financial Reporting Standard in High Inflation Economies” is not applied in the
financial statements of the Company/Group/Bank as of 31 December 2023,
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.1  Basis Of Presentation (Continued)
2.1.2 Netting/Offset

Financial assets and liabilities are shown net in cases where there is the necessary legal right, there is an
intention to evaluate the said assets and liabilities clearly, or when the acquisition of assets and the
fulfilment of liabilitics are consccutive.

2.1.3 Going concern
The Company prepared its financial statements considering the going concern principal.
2.1.4 Currency used

Financial statements of the Company have been presented using the currency {functional currency) of
the economic environment in which the Company operates. The financial position and the results of
operations of the Company have been presented in the Turkish Lira (“TL").

2,1.5 Critical Accounting evaluations, estimates and assumptions

Preparation of these financial statements requires estimates and judgments regarding the reported
amount of assets and liabilities or contingent assets and liabilities and reported amount of income and
expenses of the related period. Such estimates and judgements are based on the Company’s best
estimates regarding current events and transactions; however, the actual results may differ from these
cstimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the vear in which the estimate is revised and in any future years affected.

In particular, information about significant arcas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policics that have the most significant cffect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements are described in the following note:

Allowances for impairment of lease receivables

The provision for total financial leasing receivables, which is determined by valuing the financial leasing
reccivables, 1s determined in a way that includes the doubtful receivables in the Company’s financial
leasing receivables portfolio. The Company has set this provision accordance with BRSA Communiqué
on Procedures Regarding Provisions to be provided for Loans of Leasing. Factoring and Consumer
Finance Companies (“Provisions Communiqué™) published in Official Gazette No. 28861, dated 24
December 2013,

The total provision for leasing receivables determined as a result of the evaluation of financial leasing
receivables is determined to include doubtful receivables in the Company's leasing receivables portfolio,
The Company reserves the relevant provision in accordance with Article 6 of the “Regulation on
Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing
Companics” published in the Official Gazette dated 24 December 2013 and numbered 28861 by the
BRSA. According to the relevant communiqué, at least 20% of the financial leasing receivables whose
collection is delayed between 151-240 days from the duc date, after taking into account the guarantees,
and at least 50% after taking into account the collaterals of the financial leasing receivables whose
collection is delayed between 240 and 365 days from the due date. and 100% specific provision is set
after taking into account the guarantees of financial leasing receivables whose collection 1s overdue for
more than 365 days.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.1 Basis of Presentation (Continued)

In the provisions communiqué, it is stated that companies can set aside provisions in general and without
being directly related to any transaction, in order to compensate for losses expected to arise from
receivables that do not delay the collection of principal, interest or both or have not exceeded the
aforementioned periods, but whose amount is not certain, but it is not considered as a requirement. The
company allocates a general provision for its financial lease receivables that do not become doubtful.
Afier the collection of receivables for which provision has been set aside, the provision amounts are
reversed, and all of the related receivables are deducted from assets. During the collection of a receivable
rclated to a Prior year's provisions, the related collection amount 1s credited to “Other Operating
Income™ account as income.

Recognition of deferred tax asset

Deferred tax asscts can be recorded as much as the said tax benefit is probable, Amount of taxable profits
and possible tax benefits in the future is based on medium term business plan and expectations prepared
by the company. The business plan is based on rational expectations of the company under current
circumstances.

Fair value measurements of the share certificates

Fair value measurements of the share certificates are valued for determination of fair value by
independent valuation instutions once a year,

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies
2.2.1 Comparatives and restatement of prior year financial statements

The Company has presented its balance sheet prepared as of December 31, 2023 in comparison with its
balance sheet prepared as of December 31, 2022, The Company has presented its profit or loss statement,
profit or loss and other comprehensive statement of income, statement of change in equity and statement
of cash flows for the accounting period from January | to December 31, 2023 in companison with the
accounting period from January 1 o December 31, 2022,

2.2.2 Changes in accounting policies

Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively and the prior period’s financial statements
are restated accordingly. There is no major change in the accounting policies of the Company in the
current year.

2.2.3 Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The effect of a change in an accounting estimate is recognised prospectively in the period of the change,
if the change affects that period only; or the period of the change and future periods, if the change affects
both, There has not been any significant change in the accounting estimates of the Company in the
current year. Material prior year errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative
amounts for the prior periods.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)
The new standards, amendments and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the financial statements as at December 31, 2023 are
consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the adoption of new and amended TFRS
and TFRS interpretations effective as of January 1, 2023 and thereafter. The effects of these standards
and interpretations on the Company’s financial position and performance have been disclosed in the
related paragraphs.

i) The new standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective as at January 1,
2023 are as follows:

Amendments to TMS 8 — Definition of Accounting Estimates

In August 2021, POA issucd amendments to TAS 8, in which it introduces a new definition of
“accounting cstimates”. The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting
estimates and changes in accounting policices and the correction of errors. Also, the amended standard
clarifies that the effects on an accounting estimate of a change in an input or a change in a measurement
technique are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior period
errors. The previous definition of a change in accounting estimate specified that changes in accounting
estimates may result from new information or new developments, Therefore, such changes are not
corrections of errors. This aspect of the definition was retained by the POA. The amendments apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of the
effective date.

The amendments did not have a significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Company.

Amendments to TAS 1 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies

In August 2021, POA issucd amendments to TAS 1, in which it provides guidance and examples to help
entitics apply materiality judgements to accounting policy disclosures. In the absence of a definition of
the term ‘significant’ in TFRS, the POA decided to replace it with “material” in the context of disclosing
accounting policy information. ‘Material’ is a defined term in TFRS and is widely understood by the
users of financial statements, according to the POA. In assessing the materiality of accounting policy
information, entities need to consider both the size of the transactions, other events or conditions and
the nature of them. Examples of circumstances in which an entity is likely to consider accounting policy
information to be material have been added.

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendment on financial position or
performance of the Company.
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2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies {Continued)

Amendments to TAS 12 — Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

In August 2021, POA issued amendments to TAS 12, which narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception under TAS 12, so that it no longer applics to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. The amendments clarify that where payments that settle a liability are
deductible for tax purposes, it is a matter of judgement (having considered the applicable tax law)
whether such deductions are attributable for tax purposes to the liability recognised in the financial
statements (and interest expense) or to the related asset component (and interest expense). This
Judgement is important in determining whether any temporary differences exist on inthal recognition of
the asset and liability. The amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the
carliest comparartive period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented, a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax
liability for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning
obligations should be recognized.

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendment on financial position or
performance of the Company.

Amendments to TAS 12 - International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules

In September 2023, POA issued amendments to TAS 12, which introduce a mandatory exception in TAS
12 from recognizing and disclosing deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes,
The amendments clarify that TAS 12 applies 1o income taxes arising from tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two Model Rules publhished by the Organization for
Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD), The amendments also introduced targeted disclosure
requirements for entities affected by the tax laws. The temporary exception from recognition and
disclosure of informartion about deferred raxes and the requirement to disclose the application of the
exception apply immediately and retrospectively upon issue of the amendments. However, certain
disclosure requirements are not required to be applied for any interim period ending on or before 31
December 2023,

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendment on financial position or
performance of the Company.

i) Standards issued but not vet effective and not early adopted

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are issued but not yet effective up
to the date of issuance of the financial statements are as follows. The Company will make the necessary
changes if not indicated otherwise, which will be affecting the financial statements and disclosures, when
the new standards and interpretations become effective.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies {Continued)

Amendments to TFRS 10 and TAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

In December 2017, POA postponed the effective date of this amendment indefinitely pending the
outcome of its research project on the equity method of accounting. Early application of the amendments
is still permitted.

The Company will assess the impact of these amendments when the standards are finalized.
TFRS 17 - New Insurance Contracts Standard

POA issucd TFRS 17 in February 2019, a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance
contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. TFRS 17 model combines
a current balance sheet measurcment of insurance contract liabilities with the recognition of profit over
the period that services are provided. The mandatory effective date of the Standard postponed to
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024 with the announcement made by the POA,

The standard 15 not applicable for the Company and will not have an impact on the financial position
or performance of the Company.

Amendments to TAS 1- Classification of Liabilities as Current and Non-Current Liabilities

In January 2020 and January 2023, POA issucd amendments to TAS | to specify the requirements for
classifying liabilitics as current or non-current. According to the amendments made in January 2023 if
an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with the required
covenants at a date subsequent to the reporting period (“future covenants™), the entity has a right to defer
scttlement of the hability even if it does not comply with those covenants at the end of the reporting
period. In addition, January 2023 amendments require an entity to provide disclosure when a liability
arising from a loan agreement 15 classified as non-current and the entity’s right to defer settlement 1s
contingent on compliance with future covenants within twelve months. This disclosure must include
information about the covenants and the related liabilities. The amendments clarified that the
classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of the hability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. The amendments are
cffective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, The amendments must be applied
retrospectively in accordance with TAS 8. Early application is permitted. However, an entity that applies
the 2020 amendments early is also required to apply the 2023 amendments, and viee versa.

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on financial position or
performance of the Company.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)
Amendments to TFRS 16 - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

In January 2023, POA issued amendments to TFRS 16. The amendments specify the requirements that
a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.
In applying requircments of TFRS 16 under “Subsequent measurement of the lease liability™ heading
after the commencement date in a sale and leascback transaction, the seller lessee determines ‘lease
payments’ or ‘revised lease payments’ in such a way that the seller-lessee would not recognise any
amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use retained by the seller-lessee. The amendments
do not presenbe specific measurement requirements for lease habilities arising from a leascback, The
initial measurcment of the lease liability arising from a leascback may result in a scller-lessee
determining ‘lease payments’ that are different from the general definition of lease payments in TFRS
16. The seller-lessee will need to develop and apply an accounting policy that results in information that
is relevant and reliable in accordance with TAS 8. A seller-lessee applies the amendments to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2024, Earlier application is permitted. A seller-lessce
applies the amendments retrospectively in accordance with TAS 8 1o sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of TFRS 16,

The amendments are not applicable for the Company and will not have an impact on the financial
position or performance of the Company.

Amendments to TAS 7 and TFRS 7 - Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements

The amendments issued by POA in September 2023 specify disclosure requirements to enhance the
current requirements, which are intended to assist users of financial statements in understanding the
cffects of supplicr finance arrangements on an entity’s labilitics, cash flows and exposure to hquidity
risk. Supplier finance arrangements are characterized by one or more finance providers offering to pay
amounts an entity owes its suppliers and the entity agreeing to pay according to the terms and conditions
of the arrangements at the same date as, or a date later than, suppliers are paid. The amendments require
an entity to provide information about terms and conditions of those arrangements, quantitative
information on liabilities related to those arrangements as at the beginning and end of the reporting
period and the type and effect of non-cash changes in the carrying amounts of those liabilities. In the
context of quantitative liquidity risk disclosures required by TFRS 7, supplier finance arrangements are
also included as an example of other factors that might be relevant ro disclose. The amendments will be
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2024, Early adoption is permitted
but will need to be disclosed.

Owerall, the Company docs not expect a significant impact on the financial statements.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies (Continued)

iii) The new amendments that are issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) but not issued by Public Oversight Authority (POA)

The following amendments to TAS 21 are issued by LASB but not vet adapted/issucd by POA. Therefore,
they do not constitute part of TFRS. The Company will make the necessary changes to its consolidated
financial statements after the amendments are issued and become effective under TFRS.,

Amendments to IAS 21 - Lack of exchangeability

In August 2023, [ASB issued amendments to IAS 21. The amendments specify how an entity should
assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should determine a spot exchange rate when
exchangeability is lacking. When an entity estimates a spot exchange rate because a currency is not
exchangeable into another currency, it discloses information that enables users of its financial statcments
to understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected
to affeet, the entity's financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

The standard is not applicable for the Company and will not have an impact on the financial position
or performance of the Company.

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
Foreign exchange transactions

Transactions denominated 1in foreign currencics are accounted for at the exchange rates prevairling at the
date of the transactions and monctary asscts and liabilitics denominated in forcign currencics translated
by using year-end exchange rates of Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey’s bid rates. Gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign currency exchange rates used on 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

US Dolar 294382 186953
Euro 32.5739 19.9349
GBP 374417 22,4892
CHF 349666 202019

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, deposits
at banks and highly hiquid and insignificant nsk of change in the value of the investments with maturity
periods of less than three months,

Financial leasing transactions

“TFRS 16 Leases” Standard determines the principles regarding the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases. The purpose of the standard is to ensure that the tenants and lessors
present these transactions i fair value and provide the information appropriate to the need., This

1%
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information constitutes the basis for the evaluation of the effeet of leases on the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the financial statement users.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

{1} As lessor

Asscts which arc subject to lcasing transactions are presented as a reccivable which cquals to the
investment amount made for the related leasing transactions. Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease using the net investment method, which reflects a periodic constant rate of return. The
leasing pavments received are deducted from the gross leasing investments by reducing the principal
and uncarncd finance income.

{ii)  As lessee

In accordance with the *“TFRS 16 - Leases” standard, the Company calculates the “right of use™ amount
based on the present value of the lease payments of the fixed asset subject to lease at the beginning of
the lease and includes it in “tangible fixed assets™. In the caleulation of right of use assets, the unpaid
lease payment amounts have been discounted with an alternative borrowing interest rate, taking into
acecount the remaining term in the lease contract with the property owner, and the net present value has
been determined.

The Company has accounted the total of lease obligations to be paid until the end of the lease contract
as “Liabilities from Leasing Transactions” in the balance sheet liabilities, instead of directly expense the
leases subject to TFRS 16 Leases standard or taking them into prepaid expenses. Changes that will affect
the lease obligation are measured again and reflected in the balance sheet accounts.

Based on the lease contract term, interest and depreciation are caleulated monthly over the net present
value and accounted in the income statement.

Allowances for impairment of lease receivables

The lease receivables provision for the impairment of investments in direct finance leases is established
bascd on a credit review of the receivables portfolio, The Company has sct this provision in accordance
with BRSA Communiqué on Procedures Regarding Provisions to be provided for Loans of Leasing,
Factoring and Consumer Finance Companies (“Provisions Communigue™) published in Official Gazette
No. 28861, dated 24 December 2013,

As the details are explained in footnote 2.1.5 on Important Accounting Evaluation Estimates and
Assumptions, even if the delay in collection of receivables has not exceeded the specified periods or
there 1s no delay in the collection of receivables, companics will use all available data regarding the
creditworthiness of the debtor for their receivables and Turkish Financial Reporting Standards.
Considering the reliability and prudence principles set forth in the Articles of Association, it allows them
to set aside special provisions at the rates determined, without including the collateral amount in the
caleulation, Except for the rates regulated in the relevant regulation, the Company does not have any
provisions set aside at the rates determined, without including the collateral amount in the caleulation.

With the collection of the receivable, the previously reserved provision is reversed, and the entire
reccivable 1s deducted from the assct. In case of collection of a reccivable for which provision was made
in previous periods, the relevant amounts are recorded as income in the “Other Operating Income™
account.

Explanations on the write-off policy:

As a consequence of the tracking process, loans with low/no collection possibility and non-performing
loans are removed from asscts as per a decision from the Board of Directors,

20
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments

The Company classifies and recognizes financial assets under “Financial Assets for Which the Fair
Value Difference is Recognized Through Other Comprehensive Income™. The financial assets are
recognized or derecognized in accordance with the “Recognition and Derecognition™ principles defined
in Section 3 related to the classification and measurement of financial instruments of the “TFRS 9
Financial Instruments” standard published in the Official Gazetie No. 29953 dated 19 December 2017
by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (POA). At initial recognition,
financial assets are measured at fair value. In the case of financial assets are not measured at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs are added or deducted to/from their fair value.

The Company recognizes a financial asset in the financial statement when, and only when, the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. When the Company first recognizes a
financial asset, the business model and the characteristics of contractual cash flows of the financial assct
are considered by management.

{i)  Financial Assets for Which the Fair Value Difference is Recognized Through Other
Comprehensive Income

Financial assets for which the fair value difference is recognised through other comprehensive income
invesiment securities are carried at fair value based on quoted bid prices, or amounts derived from cash
flow models on the financial statements as of the balance sheet date.

The Company has sccurity investments for which they do not have controlling power or significant
activity and which represent a share of capital. Securities representing the share of capital are recognised
at fair value if they are traded in organised markets and/or their fair value is determined in a reliable
manner. [f they are not traded in organised markets and their fair value is not determined in a reliable
manner, they are reflected on financial statements at cost afier the depreciation provision is deducted.

When recognising them in financial statements for the first time, the Company may choose to present
future changes in the fair value of investments in an equity instrument which is not held for commercial
purposes under other comprehensive income. In this case, dividends carned from the said investment
are transferred to financial statements as profit or loss.

Property and equipment

In the accompanying financial statements, tangible assets acquired before 1 January 2005 arc measured
at cost restated for the effects of inflation at 31 December 2004 less accumulated depreciation. Tangible
assets acquired afier 1 January 2005 are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation.

The Company decided to pursue the propertics for use according to their fair values by separating the
land and buildings within the context of TAS 16 “Turkish Accounting Standard on Property, Plant and
Equipment”, As a result of the valuation performed by an independent appraisal company, revaluation
difference of TL 108,815 (31 December 2022: TL 76,531) after deferred tax cffect is accounted under
the accumulated other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continuned)
Property and equipment (Continued)

As of 31 December, 2023, the conformity between net book value that was calculated based on the cost
of properties for use and revaluated values are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Fair Value 24 055 24,055
Net book value calculated on cost value 102,182 62813
Before tax revaluation differences 126,237 86,868
Caleulared deferred tax liability (-) (17,422) (10,337)
Revaluation differences, net 108,815 76,531

Gains/losses arising from the disposal of the tangible assets are calculated as the difference between the
net carrying value and the proceeds from the disposal of related tangible assets and reflected to the
statement of income of the related period,

Maintenance and repair costs incurred in the ordinary course of the business are recorded as expense.
There are no pledges, mortgages and other encumbrances on tangible asscts, Tangible asscts arc
depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the related assets from the date of acquisition or the date

of installation, on a straight-line basis over the cost. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at
cach reporting date.

The estimated useful lives of tangible assets are as follows:

Expected Depreciation
Tangible assets Useful Life (Year) Rate (%)
Buildings 50 2
Furnitures and fixed assets 5 20
Motor vehicles 3 20
Other non-current assets - special costs 5 20

Intangible assets

The Company's intangible assets consist of software.

The cost of the intangible assets purchased before 1 January 2005 are restated from the purchasing dates
to 31 December 2004, the date the hyperinflationary period is considered to be ended. The intangible

assets purchased afier this date are recorded at their historical costs.

The Company allocates the depreciation of the intangible asscts based on their inflation adjusted prices
based on the uscful lives of the asscts, using the straight-line method.



VAKIF LEASING
ANNUAL REPORT / 2023 § 78

ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A5,

DECEMBER 31, 2023 FOR THE YEAR OF
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“T1.7) unless otherwise indicated )

2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Assets held for resale

The assets providing the necessary conditions of being classified as the assets held for resale are recognized
with the lower of their book value and fair value less cost of sales. These assets are presented separately
on the balance sheet and are not subjected to depreciation following the classification. To classify an asset
as assct held for resale, the sale potential of the assct (or the assct Company to be disposed) should be high
and the asset should be available to immediately sell under ordinary circumstances in sale of this kind of
assets, To have high sale potential, there should be a proper scheme for sale of the asset (or assct company
to be disposed) which is prepared by a proper administrative level and an active sales program should be
launched to complement the scheme and determine the buyers. Furthermore, the asset should be marketed
actively with a price coherent to its fair value. Various incidents and conditions may extend the completion
of the sale term to more than a year. The asset is remained to be classified as the asser held for resale, if
the reason of the delay is the incidents and conditions out of the control of the Company, and there is no
sufficient evidence that the Company is continuing its sales program of the asset.

The impairment losses and profit and loss from subsequent valuation of the assets classified as the assets
held for resale are recognized on income statement,

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date o
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value inuse, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the ime value of
money and the risks specific to the asser.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are firmed together into the smallest company of assets
that generates cash inflows from contimuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
asscts or company of assets (the “cash -generating unit™),

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of income.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits

In accordance with existing Turkish Labour Law, the Company is required to make lump-sum
termination indemnities to each employee who has completed one vear of service with the Company
and whose employment is terminated due to retirement or for reasons other than resignation or
misconduct. The computation of the liability is based upon the retirement pay ceiling announced by the
Government, The applicable ceiling amount as of 31 December 2023 s full TL 3505858
{31 December 2022: full TL 15,371.40) The Company provided reserve for employee severance
indemnities in the accompanying financial statements using actuarial method in compliance with the
TAS 19,

As of 31 December 2023, and 2022, the actuarial assumptions are as follows:
31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Discount rate %3.00 3.00%
Expected rate of salarv/ceiling increase "a28.24 18.45%

Expected rate of salary/ceiling increase is determined based on inflation estimates of the government.
The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for cach year of service will increase in line with
inflation, Thus, the discount rate applicd represents the expected real rate afier adjusting for the
anticipated effects of future inflation.

The Company has provided reserve for short-term employee benefits in the financial period as per
services rendered in compliance with TAS 19 - Employvee Benegfits in the accompanying financial
statements.

Authority with the Communiqué published in Official Gazette on 12 March 2013 numbered 28585, in
the caleulation of the employment termination benefit liabilities of the Company, the recognition method
of the actuanal gains and losses derived from the changes in actuarial assumptions or the differences
between actuanial assumptions and realizations in the income statement has been eliminated which s
effective for the annual periods beginning on or after | January 201 3. Beginning of | January 2013, the
Company has recognised the actuarial gains and losses that occur in related reporting periods in the
“Statement of Comprchensive Income™ and presented in the “Extraordinary reserves” item in the Equity
section of the financial staterments.

Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities

In the financial statements, a provision is made for an existing liability resulted from past events if it is
probable that the liability will be settled, and a reliable estimate can be made for the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are caleulated based on the best estimates of management on the expenscs to incur
as at the balance sheet date and, if material, such expenses are discounted to their present values. If the
amount is not reliably estimated and there is no probability of cash outflow from the Company to settle
the liability, the related liability 15 considered as “contingent”™ and disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Provisions, contingent assets and liabilities (Continued)

A contingent assct i1s a possible assct that anscs from past cvents and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fuure events not wholly within the
control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognized in financial statements. Contingent assets are
assessed continuously to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial
statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of cconomic benefits will arise, the asset and
the related income are recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.
If an inflow of economic benefits has become probable, the Company discloses the contingent asset in
the accompanying financial statements.

Income and expense recognition
Finance lease income

The values of the assets leased within the context of Financial Lease Law are shown as finance lease
receivables on balance sheet at their value determined at the beginning of the leasing transaction, The
interest income generated by the difference between total finance lease receivable and the invesiment
value of the asset subject to leasing is recorded to the income statement of the period by means of
distribution of the receivables with fixed interest rate to the related periods. The interest income not
acerued in relevant period is followed under uneamed interest income,

Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expense are recognized according to the effective interest method based on accrual
basis. Effective interest rate is the rate that discounts the expected cash flows of financial asscts or
liabilitics during their lifetimes to their carrying values. Effective interest rate is caleulated when a
financial assct or a lability 15 imitially recorded and 15 not modified thereafter.

The computation of effective interest rate comprises discounis and premiums, fees and commissions
paid or received and transaction costs, which are indispensable parts of effective interest. Transaction
costs arc additional costs that are directly related to the acquisition or disposal of financial assets or
liabilities.

Fees and commissions

The fees and commissions reecived from and paid due to finance lease operations are recognized in the
statement of income when the related service is rendered or received.

Dividend
Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive payment is ascertained,
Other income and expenses

Other income and expenses are recognized on an acorual hasis.,
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation

Corporate faxes

As of 31 December 2023, the corporate tax rate is 30% (31 December 2022: 25%). With the Law
proposed to the Turkish Grand National Assembly on July 5, 2023 and published in the Official Gazette
dated July 15, 2023, amendments were made to the Corporate Tax Law No. 5520. According to this:
starting from the declarations that must be submitted as of October 1, 2023, the corporate tax rate is 30%
for banks, companics within the scope of Law No. 6361, clectronic payment and moncy institutions,
authorized foreign exchange institutions, assel management companics, capital market institutions,
insurance and reinsurance companies and pension companies. It was increased from 25% to 30%. This
regulation starts with the declarations that must be submitted as of October 1, 2023; It entered into force
on July 15, 2023, to be apphed to the carmings of institutions in the 2023 and subscquent taxation periods,
and to the carnings of institutions subject to the special accounting period in the special account taxation
periods starting in the 2023 calendar vear,

In accordance with the provisions of the duplicate 298th article of the Tax Procedure Law, it has been
legislated that financial statements will be subject to inflation adjustment in the event that the increase
in the producer price index exceeds 100% in the last 3 accounting periods, including the current period,
and exceeds 10% in the current accounting period, The transition to inflation accounting will be made
on the financial statements dated 31 December 2023, According to Article 17 of Law No. 7491 on Some
Amendments to Some Laws and Decrees Having the Force of Law, published in the Official Gazette
No. 32413 on 28 December 2023, it has become law that the profivloss differences resulting from the
inflation adjustment to be made in the 2024 and 2025 accounting periods, including provisional tax
periods, by banks, companics covered by the Financial Leasing, Factoring, Financing and Savings
Finance Companiecs Law No. 6361 dated 21 November 2012, payment and clectronic money institutions,
authorized foreign exchange institutions, assel management companies, capital market institutions,
insurance and reinsurance companies, and pension companics, will not be taken into account in
determining the profit,

This rate is applied to net income modified for certain exemptions (like dividend income) and deductions
(like investment incentives), and additions for certain non-tax-deductible expenses and allowances for
tax purposes. If there is no dividend distribution planned, no further tax charges are made.

Withholding tax rate on dividend payments, which are made to the companies except those are domiciled
in Turkey or generate income in Turkey via a business or a regular agent, is 15%. In applying the
withholding tax rates on dividend payments to the non-resident institutions and the individuals, the
withholding tax rates covered in the related Double Tax Treaty Agreements are faken into account.
Appropriation of the retained earnings to capital is not considered as profit distribution and therefore is
not subject to withholding tax,

26
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation {Continued)

The prepaid taxes are calculated and paid ar the rates valid for the earnings of the relared years. The
paymenis can be deducted from the annual corporate tax calculated for the whole year earnings. Under
the Turkish taxation system, tax losses can be carried forward up to five years. As of 31 December 2023,
the Company has no deductible tax losses (31 December 2022: None).

In Turkey, there 1s no procedure for a final and defimitive agreement on tax assessments, Companies file
their tax returns until the end of the 25th day of the 4th month following the close of the accounting year
to which they relate. Tax returns are open for five years from the beginning of the vear that follows the
date of filing during which time the tax authorities have the right to audit tax returns, and the related
accounting records on which they are based and may issue re-assessments based on their findings,

Deferred taves

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized, in accordance with TAS 12- Jncome Taxes, on all
taxable temporary differences arising between the carrying values of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their corresponding balances considered in the calculation of the tax base, except for the
differences not deductible for tax purposes and initial recognition of assets and liabilities which affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit.

According to the tax legislation, as long as it is deemed possible to obtain a financial profit that can be
deducted in the following periods, it calculates deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences
excluding general provisions and deferred tax liability on all taxable temporary differences.

In the financial statements dated 31 December 2023, deferred tax assets and liabilities are caleulated
with 30% rates for the parts of temporary differences that will have tax effects in 2023 and the following
periods. (December 31, 2022: 25%,)

The deferred tax asscts and liabilitics are reported as net in the financial statements only if the Company
has legal right to present the net value of current year tax assets and current year tax habilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are income taxes of the same taxable entity.

Fransfer pricing

In Turkey, the transfer pricing provisions have been stated under the Article 13 of Corporate Tax Law
with the heading of “disguised profit distribution via transfer pricing”. The General Communiqué on
disguised profit distribution via Transfer Pricing, dated 18 November 2007 sets details about
implementation.

According to the Communiqué, if a taxpayer enters into transactions regarding sale or purchase of goods
and services with related parties, where the prices are not set in accordance with arm's length principle,
then related profits are considered to be distributed in a disguised manner through transfer pricing. Such
disguised profit distributions through transfer pricing are not accepted as tax deductible for corporate
INCome Lax purposes.

P
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3  Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Related party

In accordance with TAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures sharcholders, key management and board
members, in each case together with companies controlled by or affiliated with them, and associated
companies are considered and referred to as related parties. Related party transactions consist of the
transfer of the assets and habilities between related parties by a price or free of charge.

For the purpose of the accompanying financial statements, sharcholders of the Company the companics
controlled by/associated with them, key management and the Board members of the Company are
referred to as related parties.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share disclosed in the statements of income is determined by dividing the profit attributable
to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the period concerned. In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata
distribution of shares (“bonus shares”™) to existing shareholders from retained eamings to shareholders’
cquity, For the purpose of carnings per share computations, the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period has been adjusted in respect of bonus shares issucd without a
corresponding change in resources by giving them retroactive effect for the period in which they were
issued and for each earlier period.

Subsequent events

Subscquent events mean the events occurred between the reporting date and the authorization date for
the announcement of the financial statements. In accordance with TAS 10 - Events After the Balance
Sheet Date; post-balance sheet events that provide additional information about the Company’s position
at the balance sheet dates (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements, Post- balance sheet
events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.

Statement of cash Mows

The Company prepares statement of cash flows to inform the users of the financial statements about the
changes in its net asscts, its financial structure and its ability to affect the amount and timing of its cash
flows with respect to changing external conditions,

In the statement of cash flows, cash flows of the period are reported with a classification based on
operating, investing and financing activities. cash flows from operating activitics represent cash flows
from activities within the scope of business, cash flows relating to imvestment activities represent cash
flows used and generated from investment activities (fixed investments and financial investments). cash
flows relating to financing activities represent the sources of financing the Company used and the
repavments of these sources.
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2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Statement of cash flows (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, for the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents are presented below:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Cash and cash equivalents in the

statement of cash flows 2,737,177 2,742,139
Interest income accruals on cash and cash equivalents (6,928) (1,893)
Total in the cash flow statement

cash and cash equivalents 2,730,249 2,740,246

3 - SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting of financial information

A business scgment is a part of an arca where the Company operates and for which outcomes are
regularly reviewed, performance is measured and financial information can be distinguished by the

Board of Directors (as the decision-making authority), and a business segment earns revenues and has
expenses, including revenues and expenses arising from transactions with other business segments.

Since all activities of the Company consist of financial leasing and are performed in a single region,
Turkey, there 15 no scgment reporting.

4 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND THE CENTRAL BANK

Cash and cash equivalents and the Central Bank

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, details of bank balances are as follow

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Banks 2737177 2,742,139
Demand deposit 2217416 2,727,690
Time deposit 519,761 14,449

Total 2,737,177 2,742,139

As at 31 December 2023, time deposits consist of bank placements with maturity less than three months
and with interest rates average 3.80% for foreign currency and 41.80% for TL time deposits.
{31 December 2022: 15.69% for TL and 1.35% for foreign).
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5- FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS FINANCIAL ASSETS

The details of the Company's financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss as of December 31, 2023 and
December 31, 2022 are as follows.

J1 December 2023 31 December 2022

TP YP TP YP
Government debt secunities - 626,179 - -
Total fair value through profit or loss - 626,179

6 - FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Details of financial assets for which the fair value difference is recognised through other comprehensive
income are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Carrying Carrying
value'™ Share (%) value Share (%)
Not Traded at Stock Market:
Valaf Faktoring AS. 81,552 379 38,781 379
Wakaf Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret AS. 17.411 3.27 5,902 3.27
Vakaf Yatinm Menkul Degerler A%, 5,508 0.25 2008 0.25
Financial assets for which fair value
difference is recognised
through other comprehensive income 104,561 46,781

« Financial asseis at fair value through other comprehensive income that are monitored at Level 3 include fair values of
marketable secunties representing Gnr market value held by mdependent appraisers.

30
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7 - LEASING TRANSACTIONS AND IMPAIRED RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are as follow:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

TL FC TL FC
Lease receivables 19,273,231 7239008 6,077.456 4,576,591
Invoiced lease receivables 43 508 115,508 29026 118,385
Subtotal 19,316,739 7,354,516 6,106,482 4,694,976
Uncarned interest income (6,046 842) (1,090 463) (2,009 687T) (588 488)
Finance lease receivables,
net of unearned income 13,269,897 6,264,053 4,096,795 4,106,488
Impaired lease receivables 82,178 137,539 46,157 174,537
Specific provision (39 430 (107,970% (29.719) (98.415)
Impaired lease receivables, net 42,748 29,569 16,438 76,122

Finance lease receivables, net 13,312,645 4,293,622 4,113,233 4,182,610

31



VAKIF LEASING 87
ANNUAL REPORT / 2023 :

ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

VAKIF FINANSAL KIRALAMA A.S.

DECEMBER 31, 2023 FOR THE YEAR OF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise indicated)

7 = LEASING TRANSACTIONS AND IMPAIRED RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Prospective aging analysis of the neither past due nor impaired and past duc but not impaired lease

receivables 1s as follows:

4 vear and
31 December 2023 Up to 1 vear 1-2 vear 2-3 vear 34 vear over Total
Lease receivables 14,207 432 THTOAIR 3680751 762,495 350,159 26,671,255
Unearmed interest income (4ATR2I1 (19823510 (564,490 (71,468 (33,785) (7137305
Net finansal kiralama alacaklar: 9729221 5681067 3,116,261 691,027 316,374 19,533 950
4 vear and
31 December 2022 Up to 1 vear 1-2 vear 2-3 vear 34 vear aver Total
Lease receivables 4920032 2704291 1,858,707 B51,832 465 6946 10,801 458
Unearned interest incoms (1.296,832) (742,536)  (368,075) (137,149 {53,543) (2,598,175)
Finance lease receivahles, Net 3624000 1961735 1 4WL632 714,683 412,113 8,203,283

As of 31 December 2023, the average compounded interest rates for finance lease receivables are
32.27% for TL, 9.59% for USD and 8.18% for EUR (31 December 2022: 27.09% for TL, 8.45% for

USD and 7.00% for EUR).

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the aging of the lease reccivables and related specific provisions are

as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

MNeither past due nor impaired 19,374 934 2055872
Past due but not impaired 159,016 147 411
Impaired 219,717 220,694
Allowances for impairment (147 400) (128,134
Finance lease receivables, net 19,606,267 5,295,843

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

151-240 days 37,877 33,793
241-1 vear 3,528 40,430
I year and over 178,312 146,471
Impaired lease receivables, net 219,717 220,694
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7 = LEASING TRANSACTIONS AND IMPAIRED RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As of 31 December 2023, and 2022, details of the impaired lease receivables and related specific
provisions are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
TL FC TL FC
Impaired lease receivables B2 178 137,539 46,157 174,537
Specific provisions (39.430) (1079700 (29719 (98.415)
Impaired lease receivables, net 42,748 19,569 16,438 T6,122

The movement of the specific provision during the vear is as follows:
31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Specific provisions at the beginning of the year 137,499 208,655
Provision for the year 40,149 26,197
General loan loss provisions for the year (Note 16) 11,390 4,253
Amount deleted from the asset during the period(*) (4,498) (92,081)
Collections during the vear (21.966) (9.575)
Specific provisions at the end of the year 162,574 137,499

(*) Due o the amount written off from assets, the NPL Ratio was 1.11% instead of 1.13%,

The details of collaterals taken for finance lease receivables that have specific provisions are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Mortgage 40,761 36,359
Other 1,993 361
Total collateral 42,754 36,920

The company reviews any change in credit quality related to receivables from the date it is created o
the balance sheet date in order to decide whether the receivable can be collected or not. Sectoral
distribution of the finance lease receivables is presented in Note 24.

EX
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8 - TANGIBLE ASSETS
Movement in tangible assets in the penod from | January to 31 December 2023;

1 January  Additions Disposals 31 December
Cosi:
Buildings 90943 30368 - 130,311
Motor vehicles 7,231 26,220 (4.643) 28,808
“Furniture and fixiurc 2,341 5,214 (335) 7.020
Other tangible assets 755 103 - A58
Right of us¢ tangible asscis (*) 220 7,298 (1369 7382
101,490 T8.203 (5.314) 174,379
Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (5,249) (3,257 - (8,5006)
Motor vehicles (2,329 (2,577 1,750 (3,156)
Furniture and fixture (1,322} (244) 221 (1.345)
Other tangible asscts (782} (585) - (1,367
Righi of use tangible assels (*) (59) (1,082) 110 (1,031)
(9,741) {7,745) 2,081 (15,405)
Net defter deferi 91,749 158,974

o The balance consisis of includes the lease coniracis made within the scope of TFRS16.

Movement in tangible assets in the period from | January to 31 December 2022:

1 January 31 December
2022 Additions Disposals 2022
Clasi:

Buildings 24,940 G603 - 90,943
Motor vehicles 8,523 - (1,292) 7.231
“Furniture and fixture 2,089 265 (1% 2,341
Other tangible assets [l 59 - 755
Right of use tangible assecis (%) 199 74 (53) 220
36,447 66,401 (1,358) 101,490

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (4.617) (63N - (5,249
Motor vehicles (1,141 (1,446) 258 (2,329)
Furniture and fixture (1,003 (325) & (1.322)
Other tangible asscls (B30 (123) - (T82)
Right of use tangible assets (*) (37 (75) a3 (59
(7.457) (2,601) 317 (9.741)
Net book value 28,990 63,800 (1.041) 91,749

o The balance consists of includes the lease contracts made within the scope of TFRSI16.

As 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, there 15 no mortgage on the tangible asscts of the
Company.

As of 31 December 2023, total insurance coverage for tangible assets of the Company 1s TL 96,507
{31 December 2022: TL 68,851).
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9 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Mowvement in intangible assets in the period from 1 January to 31 December 2023 1s as follows:

1 January 31 December
2023 Additions Disposals 2023
Cosi:

Software 5,035 607 - 5642
5,035 607 - 5,042

Accumulated amortization:
Software (3,972) (549) - {4.521)
(3,972) (547) - (4.521)
MNet book value 1,063 1.121

Movement in intangible assets in the period from | January to 31 December 2022 is as follows:

1 January 31 December
2022 Additions Disposals 2022
Coxi:

Software 4210 825 - 5,035
4,210 825 - 5,035

Accnmulated amorfization:
Soltware (3.526) (440) - (3.972)
(3,526) (446) - (3.972)
MNet book value 084 1,063

10 - ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

As of December 31, 2023, the Company's fixed asscts held for sale consist of real estate that the
Company has included in its asscts as a result of legal proceedings related to non-performing receivables,
the details of which are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
R.cal estate held for sale 449,500 128 480

Total 49,500 128,480
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11 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Social Security Premiums 3916 1,622
Income tax 1,268 64
VAT pavable 178 295
Stamp tax 42 15

5,404 2,496

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Tax provision 541,407 97436
Less: Prepaid taxes (419 680) (69601
Current income tax liabilities, net 121,727 27,835

Tax expense

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Corporate tax expense for the period (541,407) (97.436)
Deferred tax income/{expense) effect (71,895) (75,808)
(613,302) (173,244)

Reconciliation of current period tax expense to theoretical tax expense of the Company calculated by

using the statutory tax rate:

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Profit before taxes 2,056,391 691,810
Theoretical tax expense with 30% tax rate ' (G16,917) (172,9353)
General loan loss provision not subjected to deferred tax (3417 (1.063)
Other ™" 7.052 772
Current year tax expense (613,302) (173,244)

*)
{**J

36

The tax rate is calculated as 30% for 2023 and 25% for 2022,
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11 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

Deferred taxes

The Company calculates and accounts for deferred income taxes for all temporary differences ansing
berween the tax bases of assets and liabilitics and their carrving amounts in these financial statements
in accordance with “Turkish Accounting Standard for Income Taxes™ (“TAS 127). In the deferred tax
calculation, the enacted tax rate, in accordance with the tax legislation, is used as of the balance sheet
dare.

The company takes into account the periods when deferred tax asscts are realized or deferred tax
labilities are fulfilled in the calculation of deferred tax (31 December 2022: 25%).

Details of cumulative temporary differences and the deferred income tax assets and liabilities caleulated
by using the effective tax rates are summarised below:

Total Deferred tax assets/
Temporary differences (liabilities)

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2023 2022 2023 2022

Property, plant and equipment and intangible
asscts net book value 55,994 - 16,798 -
Lease Asset Receivable Impairment 43,751 43,784 13,125 101,46
Unused investment incentives- with sioppage 19,604 - 5,883 -
Provision for employee termination benefit 13,364 9,834 4,00 2458
Other short term emplovyee benefits 9,703 5,391 2910 1,34%
Provision for unused vacations 1,455 702 437 176
Total lease liabilities 6,666 180 2,000 45
Deferred tax assets 150,537 59,891 45,162 14,973
Finance lease income accruals (637,655) (381,343) (197,296) (95,336)

Tangible and intangible assets

revaluation difference (64,378) (86,868) (19.313) (10,85%)
Subsidiary revaluation fund - (42,362) - (2,648)
Others - (8.253) - (2061}
Deferred tax Liabilities (722,033) (518,826) (216,609) (110,904)
Deferred tax assets, (net) (571,496) (458,935) (171,447) {95,931)
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11 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

The movement for deferred tax assets is as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

1 January (95,931) (11,742)
Current vear deferred tax imcome/{expensc) (71,895) (75,808)
Deferred tax in Equity income/(cxpensc) (3.621) {8,331
31 December (171,447) (95,931)

12 - OTHER ASSETS

Asat 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, details of other assets are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

TL FC TL FC
Advances given for leasing transactions 31,371 1,760,301 57,370 918,004
Investments under lease 329674 30,273 736,201 113,949
Prepaid expenscs 30364 68,722 2,795 9 756
Onher receivables regarding leasing ransactions 86,345 52,199 4,800 12,210
Other - - 1,487 #®ay
Total other assets 477,754 1,911,495 802,752 1,054,816

13 - BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2023, details of the borrowings arc as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
TL FC TL FC
Domestic banks 12,024 426 5,494 649 6,612,885 2,763,261
Foreign banks - 2,624,638 - 1,474,457
Total Borrowings 12,024,426 8,119,287 6,612,885 4,237,718

I8
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13 - BORROWINGS (Continued)

Carrving value

Amount in Average
original interest Upto3 3 months to Over
31 December 2023 Ccurrencies rates (Vo) months 1 vear 1 vear Total
Borrowings from domestic banks:
Fived rate borrowings
L 334,119 26.21 2680 331439 - 534,119
EUR (thousand) 05,6407 5.13 10613 4R860 1897430 2136903
USD (thousand) 15,711 540 3.526 458,986 - 462,512
Floating rate borrowings:
1L 11,490,307 2688 Q45817 L7IL65T  BRI2ZE3IZ 11490307
EUR (thousand) 55,882 399 0493 LEBEOR9G  LO43 845 2895234
Total borrowing from domestic banks 1,193,129 4,571,838 11,7,108 17,519,075
Borrowings from foreizn banks:
Fived rate borrowings:
FLUR (thousand) 37,164 4,92 498,571 287472 424524 1,210,567
Floating rate borrowings:
EUR (thousand) 29,803 4.05 89516 #2,234 19,061 9T0E]]
USD (thousand) 15,057 308 1.687 441,573 - 443260
Total borrowings from foreign banks S89.774 791,279 1L, 243585 1624638
Taotal borrowings 1.782.903 5363117 12997693 20,143,713
Carrving value
Amaount in Average
original interest Uptod 3 months to Over
31 December 2022 currencies rates (%) months 1 vear 1 vear Total
Borrowings from domestic banks:
Fixed rate borrowings
TL 972915 12.30 754,329 215,145 3,441 972,95
EUR (thousand) 47,941 3.53 626,707 29,2 204024 G55 0403
USD (thousand) &87 352 0,603 0,529 3,380 16,578
Floating rate horrowings:
IT. 5632970 16,69 1,175,139 182,125 4,282 706 5639970
ELUR (thousand) B4 842 3.24 81083 548,825 1,161,082 1,790,950
Total borrowing from domestic banks 2,643 981 982,326 5749630  9.376,146
Borrowings from foreign banks:
Fixved rate borrawings:
ELUR (thousand) 25982 377 - - 517,958 517.95%
Floating rate borrowings
EUR (thousand) 33863 1.91 44,041 156,644 474,379 675,064
USD (thousand) 15,051 308 - - 281,435 281,435
Total borrowings from foreign banks 44,041 156,644 1,273,772 1474457
Total borrowings 1688022 LA13%170 7023411 10850603
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14 - LEASE LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023 details of lease liabilities are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2032
TL FC TL FC
Right of use tangibles 6,666 - 180 -
Total lease liabilities 6,666 - 180 -
15 - SECURITIES ISSUED
31 December 2023 31 December 2022
TP YP TP YP
Bono™ 403,650 - - -
Bono™ 273,066 - - -
Interest accrual on securities issued 53,757 - - -
Total securities issued T30,473 - - -
G The company has issued a financing bond with a nominal value of 490,200 TL for 182 days, using the method of selling

1o gualified mvestors, on Oclober 17, 2023, The starting date of the bond's matunty is October 17, 2023, and the
redemption date 15 April 16, 2024, The anneal simple mterest rate for this financing bond is 43.00%,

")

The company has carried out the issuance of a financing bomd with a nominal value of 300,000 TL with a maturity of
M days, through a sale method o qualified investors, on Cetober 24, 2023, The commencement date of the bond's
maturity is October 24, 2023, and the redemption date is January 22, 2024, The annual simple interest rate of this
financing bond s 40.00%,

16 - DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS

MNone.
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17 - PROVISIONS

As at 31 December 2023 details of provisions for liabilities and charges are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

TL FC TL FC

General loan loss provisions for financial
lcase receivables ™ 3677 11.497 9,258 107
Reserve for employee benefits 24,522 - 15,927 -
Reserve for emplovee fermination benefie 13,364 - 0833 -
Provision for wnused vacafions 1,435 - o2 -
Reserve for bonuses 4,062 - 1,759 -
Provisions for other emplovee rights 3.641 - 3,633 -
Total provisions 28,199 11,497 25,185 107

") The Company reserves general provisions willun the scope of the ifth paragraph of Article 6 of the Regulation on

Accounting Practices and Financial Statements of Financial Leasing, Factoring and Financing Companies,

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

At the beginning of the year 9,833 4,792
Interest rate cost 1,814 905
Serviee cost 1,507 s01
Payments during the yvear {3,070 (379
Actuarial difference ! 3,728 4,014
At the end of the year 13,364 9,833
o Actuarial (loss)/profit is accounted under other comprehensive income since 1 January 2013,

18 - OTHER LIABLITIES

As of 31 December 2023, details of muscellancous payables arc as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
TL FC TL FC
Advances received (%) 397 860 227,723 305,740 232,691
Other trade payables 1,244,757 229248 11,175 320,194
Deferred income 25475 25,442 11,500 11,275
Total Other Liabilities 1,668,092 482,413 328,415 564,160

(*) Advances received consist of the lease advances received from the lessees for the pants of the financial leasing agreements
regarding the machmery and equpment not vet available to the customers.
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19 - EQUITY
Share capital

As at 31 December 2023, the share in capital of the Company amounts to TL 2,000,000 and composed
of 100.000,000,000 shares with a face value of TL 0.01 each (31 December 2022: capital shares TL
2,000,000, nominal value: 60.000.000.000 shares).

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the share capital and ownership structure of the
Company is as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Amount of Share Amount of Share
Share (TL) Percentage (%) Share (TL) Percentage (%)
Vakifbank 620,456 6205 372,274 6205
Publicly traded ™ 379,544 37.95 227,726 37.95
Pain-in capital (**) IR Yalli) G0, (MM 100%

L) Ihe ratio 15 calculated from the shares of the Company registered at Takasbank,

(**)  The company's Board of Dircctors, with the decision taken on December 14, 2023, decided to inerease its paid-in capital
by 10026 as a paid increase. For this purpose, it has applied to the Capital Markets Board (CMIB) on January 5, 2024, As of the
reporting date, the application has not vet been approved.

19 - EQUITY (Continued)

Capital reserves

As of 31 December 2023, capital reserves amounted to TL 13,310 consists of inflation adjustment
differences of paid-in capital of the Company (31 December 2022: TL 1,622),

As of 31 December 2023, revaluation difference on tangible assets amounting to TL 108815
{31 December 2022: TL 76,53 1) is accounted directly in equity. As at 31 December 2023 the marketable
securities valuation differences amounts to TL 93,609 (31 December 2022: TL 40.018).

Profit reserves

As of 31 December 2023, profit reserves of the Company consist of first legal reserves amounting to
TL 46,665 (31 December 2022: TL 20.737) and extraordinary reserves amounting to TL 164,583
{31 December 2022: TL 71.945).

Prafit distribution

Retained camings as per the statutory financial statements other than legal reserves are available for
distribution, subject to the legal reserve requirement referred to below:

According to the Turkish Commercial Code, legal reserves consist of first and second legal reserves.
Primary reserves are 5% of statutory net profit until it reaches 20% of the Company’s share capital,
Sccondary reserves are 10% of profit distributed in excess of 5% of share capital. According to the
Turkish Commercial Code, as long as legal reserves do not exceed 50% of share capital, they can be
used to offset losses but cannot be used in any other way.

At the Ordinary General Assembly meeting held on August 11, 2023, for the fiscal year 2022, it was
decided to set aside 25,928 TL as first sequence legal reserve from the net period profit of 2022, which
is 518,566 TL, to add 400,000 TL to the capital by giving bonus shares, and to set aside 92,638 TL as
extraordinary reserves,
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20 - OPERATING EXPENSES

For the years ended 31 December 2023, general administrative expenses included in the operating

expenscs are as follow:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Advertising expenscs 16,620 13,899
General administration expenses 12,171 5,545
Donations B 908 -
Depreciation and amortization expenscs 6,314 2,749
Consultancy expenses 4,639 2,021
Motary expenscs 4,187 1,415
Transportation expenses 2,046 1,418
Court expenses 1,994 414
Add-back 1,975 750
Taxes, duties and charges expenses 1,727 323
Printing, stationery and office expenses 510 278
Marketing expenses 425 242
Registration expenscs 157 42
Other operating expenses 4,406 1,760
Total general administrative expenses 66,240 30,971

For the years ended 31 December 2023, personnel expenses included in the operating expenses are as

follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Salaries 86,249 38,361
Social sceurity premiums and other contributions 10,962 5,000
Personnel insurance expenses 4 a0y 1.457
Other personnel expenses 5,708 2974
Total personnel expenses 107.528 47.792
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21 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME/EXPENSE

For the years ended 31 December 2023, personnel expenses included in the operating expenses are as

follows:

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Interest income from bank deposits 564 868 130,416
Foreign exchange gains 343,178 347 466
Provisions reversed during the year 36,555 45,124
Interest on marketable sccunitics 18,555 -
Default interest income 15,795 18,109
Interest income from non-performing loans 5,722 13,190
Income from sales of fixed assets and assets held for sale 4,764 2,344
Gains on derivative financial transactions 2,465 1,360
Dwvidend income 375 250
Rent income 299 T00
Other income 39110 19,6258
Total other operating income 1,031,686 578,587

Other operating expenses:

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Loss on derivative financial transactions - 70,973
Securities depreciation expense - 12,497
Other expense 754 150
Total other operating expenses 754 83,620

22 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

At the beginning of the year
Total number of outstanding shares

31 December 2023

60, 000,000,000

31 December 2022

46,894, 556,000

At the beginning of the vear
Total number of outstanding shares

100,000,000,000

100,000,000,000(*)

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Net income for the period 1,443,089 518,566
Number of outstanding shares

with a nominal value of TL 0.01 1RO, RO, OO0 000 1O, OO0, OO0, 000
Earnings per share (TL) 1.443 0.519

(*) The company has increased its capital amounting to T1L 400,000 from mlemal resources, and the number of shares in previous

vears has been adjusted in line with the current period
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23- TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

As of 31 December 2023, details of related party balances are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 Dgcember 2022
TL FC TL FC

Tiirkiye Vakiflar Bankas: T.A.Q. 1,450,587 36,291 1,585,535 1,153,566
Bank Deposits 1,450,587 36,20 1,585,535 1,153,566
Wakil Fakioring A5, ®1.,552 - 3R, TR] -
Vakal Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret AS. 17,411 - 5902 -
Vakif Yaurnm Menkul Degerler ALS. 5,598 - 2,008 -
Financial asscts for which fair value

difference is recognised

through other comprehensive income 104,561 - 46,781 -
Tiirkiye Vakiflar Bankas: T.A.O. 11,493 384 3,768,593 5855935 1.476.476
Borrowings 11,493,384 3,768,593 5,855,935 1,476,476
Vakil Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. 79 - 4 -
Payables to related parties 79 - 64 -

As of December 31, 2023, details of the revenue and expenses resulting from transactions made with

related parties are as follows:

31 December 2023

31 December 2022

Tiirkive Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O. 545825 123,855
Interest income from related parties 545,825 123,855
Tirkive Vakiflar Bankasi T.A.O. - interest expensc 1,921,370 562,143
Vakifbank International AG- interest expense - 87
Finance expenses of related parties 1,921,370 562,230
Vakif Yannm Menkul Degerler A.S. 375 250
Vakif Faktoring AS. 71 41
Other incomes of related parties 446 291
Tiirkiyve Vakiflar Bankas: T.A.O. fud Bd42 32.434
Vakit Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret A5, 1,167 652
Vakaf Yatrnim Menkul Degerler ALS. 1485 306
Vakif Faktoring AS, 35 44
Other expenses of related parties 67,529 33.436
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23- TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Executive management compensations

As at 31 December 2023, Company’s executive management compensations are as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
14,768

Compensation to the executive management 6,685

Total 14,768 6,685

The executive management of the Company consists of general manager, assistant general managers,
members of the board of directors and the members of the audit commutice.

24 - CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Collaterals received

As of 31 December 2023, the collaterals obtained by the Company against finance leasc receivables arc

as follows:
31 December 2023 31 December 2022

TL FC TL FC
Received guarantees 01,453,506 130,128,227 37,043,320 80,046,755
Mortgapes 3,449 599 6,176,524 2,345 391 4749 676
Assignment of claims 1,883,071 2040916 1,472,826 2,112,698
Company share pledge 1,213,588 125,112 1,089 488 79,468
Cash blockage 2,510 16,816 4,390 9429
Letters of guarantee 117,501 7.492 - -
Others 447 409 2631783 516,679 1,965 863
Taotal 98,567,184 141,127,170 42,472,094 88,963,889

Commitments

As of 31 December 2023, the Company has irrevocable commitments amounted to TL 2,138 562
(31 December 2022 TL 1,326,572) ansing from letter of credits used for the tangible assct purchascs
subject to finance leases. The distribution of the commitments according to currency types is as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

EUR 383,200 431,500
TL 1,681,795 731,183
USD 73,558 163,880
Total 2,138,562 1,326,572
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24 - CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Collaterals received {Continued)
Revocable Commitmenis

As of 31 December 2023, Company’s financial lease commimments amouns to TL 3,068,570
(31 December 2022; TL 2,499 404),

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
TL FC TL FC
Financial lease commitment 1,130,249 | 938,321 1,238,773 1,260,721
Total 1,130,249 1,938,321 1,238,773 1,260,721

Derivative financial instruments

As of December 31, 2023, the Group has no derivative financial instruments,

25 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Overview

This note presents information about the Company s exposure to cach of the below risks, the Company's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management
of capital. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instrumenis:

. Credit risk
. Ligqudity nisk
. Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s
risk management framework. The Board of Directors monitors the effectiveness of the risk management
system through various mechanism established within the Company.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions,
products and services offered. The Company, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.
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25 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is basically defined as the possibility that counterparty will fail to meet its obligations in
accordance under agreed terms of a contract. The Company aims to reduce exposed credit nisks by
entering into contracts with the counterparties having high credibility and by obtaining sufficient
collateral against the loans provided. Besides, the Companv analyse the financial position and the
credibility of the customers and aims to support this analysis with intelligence reports obtained from the
third partics. In addition, the sector and the geographical position of customers, where they operate and
other factors that may affect their operations are considered in the evaluation process of loans.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk 15 monitored on an ongoing basis
to minimize the credit risk, Credit risk 15 aimed to be controlled by the limits set by the Board of
Dircctors.

Finance lease receivables cover many kinds of customers in different sectors. For the current balances
of the customers, credit evaluations are done periodically.

Balance sheet items of the Company, which are subject to credit risk, arc as follows;

Finance lease receivables

Financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss
Banks

Other receivables
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25 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

As of 31 December 2023, sectoral distribution of finance lease receivables which are not under impaired
is as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 202
Amounnt (%) Amount (%)
Manufacturing 7,496,892 3838 3,825,500 46.63
Construction 3237204 16.57 1,630,757 19.88
Wholesale, retail and trading 2187097 11.20 RO8 606 10.95
Real estate |,609,322 H.24 482,298 5,88
Education 65 446 034 119782 1.46
Mining 393 503 3.04 329470 4.02
Health and social services | 682 828 B.61 624,545 761
Transportation, warehousing
and communication 2,076,977 10.63 67,333 082
Hotels and restaurants 215376 1.10 ®7.250 1.06
Agriculture 185,861 (1,95 81,877 1.00
Other social and individual services 123 875 1.63 40,271 (49
Financial intermediary services 9040 (.05 12,557 0.15
Others 50,529 0.26 1,037 0.05
Total 19,533,950 100 8,203,283 100

Liguidity risk
Liguidity nsk i1s the nsk that the Company will encounter difficulty in mecting obligations from iis
financial liabilities,

Management of liguidiov risk

Main responsibility for the liquidity risk management belongs to Board of Directors. Board of Directors
has created a suitable liquidity risk management for the shor-, medium- and long-term funding and
liquidity nceds. The Company manages the hquidity risk by following forecasted and actual cash flows,
matching the terms of financial asscts and liabilitics and securing necessary funds,

The following table provides undiscounted cash flows with respect to the contractual (or expected)
maturities of the Company’s financial liabilities

Total Contractual’ More

Carrving  expected maturity 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5  than 5

31 December 2023 Amount  cash infout flows or less  months YEArs VEars VCATS
Borrowings 20,143,713 26,388,008 4315874 6528338 11290235 4253561

Other liabilities 2,150,505 2,150,508 2,150,505 - - - -

Tuotal 21,294,218 28,535,513 6,466,379 6,518338 11,200,235 4,253,561 -
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25 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Total Contractual/ More

Carrying  cxpected matority 6 months h-12 1-2 2-5 than 5

31 December 2022 Amount cash in/out Mows or less months years VEArs VEArs

Bunﬂwings 10,850,603 12,821 904 3405484 1303018 4534774 35TEGIRE -
Other liabilities %92 575 892 575 802 575 . . .

Tuotal 11,745,178 15,714,479 4,298 050 1203018 4,534,774 3 5THGIE -

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the Company’s income or the value of its financial instruments will be
affected through the changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices, foreign exchange rates
and credit spreads. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk.

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency nisk through transactions in forcign currencics, such as leasc
operations and borrowings. Forcign exchange gains and losses resulting from foreign currency
transactions were recorded in the period transactions occurred. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencics are converted into TL at the exchange rates prevailing at balance
sheet date with the resulting exchange differences recognized in the statement of income as foreign
exchange gain or loss.

As of 31 December 2023, the Company s foreign currency assets and liabilities with their TL equivalents
are as follows:

31 December 2023 US Daollar Euro GRBP CHF Tatal
Cash and Cash Equivalents 448 804 682,692 - - 1,131,496
Financial Assets at Far Value

through Profit or Loss - 626,179 - - 626,179
Fimancial assels measured al amorized 984,290 5279762 - - 6,264,052
cost assels, net (1)

Other Assels 603263 1,308 086 1446 - 1.911 495
Total asscts 2,036,357 7.8%6,719 146 - 9933222
Borrowing 903,772 T2135,515 - - 2119287
Provisions 11,410 a7 - - 11,497
Other liabilities 180,188 102,225 - - 482413
Tuotal liahilitics 1,007,370 7515827 - - BG613,197
Net financial statement position 938,987 380,892 146 - 1,320,025

Net off-balance sheet items position - - - - -

Net forcign currency position Q38 987 80,892 146 = 1,320,025

01y Foreign currency non-perfomung recevables in financial statements are not included.
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25 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Currency risk (Continied)

31 December 2022 US Dollar Eura GBP CHF Tatal
Banks G670 1149912 22 - 1,156,604
Finance lease receivables, net 624,023 3412465 - - 4,106,455
Other Assets 300,976 751,787 42 2,011 1,054,816
Total assets 1,001,669 5314,164 64 2,011 6,317,908
Borrowmg 2ad014 3,939,704 - - 4,237,718
Provisions 7 (1] - - 107
Other liabilities 157,211 A0, W5 - 40 564, 160
Tuotal linbilitics 455,232 4,346,713 - 40 4,801,985
Net financial statement position 546,437 967,451 ] 1,971 1,515,923
Net off-balance sheet items position - - - - -
Net forelgn currency position 546,437 967,451 64 1,971 1515923
iy Foreign currency non-perfomming receivables in financial statements are not included.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The effects of 10 percent change of the TL against the following currencies on the statement of income
and equity for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are shown below,

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rares, remain constant.

Profit / {Loss) Equity ™"
Appreciation  Depreciation  Appreciation  Depreciation
of foreign of foreign of foreign of forcign
31 December 2023 CUrrency currency CUrrency Currency
10% change of the US Dollar against TL
I-Net USD asset/liability 93,899 (93, 8040) 93 899 (93,8
2-Hedged portion of TL against USD (<) - - - -
J-Net effect of US Dollar (1+2) 93,899 (93.899) 93,899 (93,897
10% change of the Euro against TL
4-Net Euro asset/liability 35,089 (38,089) 18059 (38,089)
5-Hedged portion of TL against Euro (=) - - - -
6-Net effect of Euro (4+5) 38,089 {38,089) 3K.089 (38,089)
10% change of the CHF apgainst TL
T-Met CHF asset/liability - i-) - (-}
8-Hedged portion of TL against CHF (<) - - - -
9-Met effect of CHF (7+8) - (=) - (=)
10% change of the GBP against TL
10-Men GBP asseliability 15 (15) 15 (15)
11-Hedged portion of TL against GBP (-) - - - -
Net effect of GBP (10+11) 15 (15) 15 (15)
TOTAL (3+6+9+12) 132,003 (132,003) 132,003 {132,003
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25 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

Fareign currency sensitivity analyvsis (Continted)

Profit [ (Loss) Equity ™
Appreciation Depreciation  Appreciation Depreciation
of foreign of foreign of foreign of foreign

31 December 2022 CUrrency CUrrency CUrrency CUrrency
10% change of the US Dollar against TL
I-Met USD asset/liability 54,644 (54,644) 54,644 (54.644)
2-Hedged portion of TL against USD (-) - - - -
A-Net effect of US Dollar (1+2) 54,644 (54.644) 54,644 (54,644)
10% change of the Euro against TL
4-Net Euro asset/liability 96,745 (96, 745) 96,745 (96,745)
5-Hedged portion of TL against Euro (<) - - - -
6-Met effect of Euro (4+5) 96,745 (6, T45) 96,745 (6, 745)
10% change of the CHF against TL
7-Met CHF assct/liability 197 (197 197 {197}
8-Hedged portion of TL against CHF (=) - - - -
Q-Net effect of CHF (7+8) 197 (197) 197 (197)
10% change of the GBP against TL
10-Net GBP asset/liability [ (6} [ {6)
11-Hedged portion of TL against GBP (-) - - - -
12-Net effect of GBP (10+11) G (6 6 (6)
TOTAL (3+6+9+12) 151.592 (151,592) 151,592 (151,592)
e Equity effect includes profiviloss) effect,

Fxposure to interest rate risk

The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed to the risk of loss from fluctuations in the
future cash flows because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally
through monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limits for repricing bands.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk through its fixed and variable rate borrowings. The risk is
managed by appropriate distribution between fixed and variable rate borrowings.

As of 31 December 2023, and 2022, the interest sensitive financial instruments of the Company are as
follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Financial assets and liabilities with fixed interest rate

Time deposits 2217416 2742139
Finance lease receivables, net 19,533 950 8,203 283
Borrowing 4,344,100 2463146
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 626,179 -
Financial assets and labilities with floating rate

Borrowing 15,799 613 B 387,457
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25 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity
Interest rate sensitivity of profit or loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the fair

values of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held as at 31 December 2022 and effect on
net interest income of floating rate non-trading financial assets and financial liabilities held.

Profit or Loss Equity ™
100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp
31 December 2023 increase decrease increase decrease
Floating rate financial liabilities (1,580 1,580 {15800 1.5%0
Total, net {1,580) 1,580 (1.580) 1,580
Profit or Loss Equity
1040 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp
31 December 2022 increase decrease increase decrease
Floating rate financial liabilities (839) 830 (839} 830
Total, net (839) B39 (839) 839

(*) Equity effect includes profit/(loss) effect.
Capital management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base and to maintain a balance between the debt
and equity in an effective way so as to increase its profit.

Along with no change in the strategy of the Company in 2023, the ratio of the equities to the debts is
139 (31 December 2022: 11%%). As of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the debt to equity
ratio is as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Borrowing 20,143,713 10,850,603
Other liabilities 2,150,505 BO2 575
Total Liabilities 22,294,218 11,743,178
Total Equity 2,862,941 1,324,939
Equity/Debt ratio Yal3 1 1%
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26 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair values of financial instruments

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Company using available
market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, certain judgments made to
estimate the fair value can cause an adjustment to the fair value at current market conditions.,

Fair values of the financial lease receivables and funds borrowed have been determined by discounting
the relevant cash flows by market interest rates prevailing as at balance sheet date. The carrying amounts
of the bank balances and miscellancous payables and other liabilities are assumed that they approximate
their fair value due to their short-term nature

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
Financial assets
Finance lease receivables, net 19,533,950 19,163,876 8,203,283 7.577.447
Securitics issued 626,179 626,179 - -
Banks 2,737,177 2,737,177 2,742,139 2,742,139
Financial liabilities
Bunnwings 20,143,713 23371 697 1y ®50, 603 9549 186
Other hiabilities 2,150,505 2,150,505 892 575 802 575

Classification of Fair Value Measurenent

TFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosure requires the disclosure of the classification of fair value
measurements according to a fair value hierarchy by reference to the observability and significance of
the inputs used in measuring fair value of financial instruments measured at fair value. This classification
basically relies on whether the relevant inputs are observable or not. Observable inputs refer to the use
of market data obtained from independent sources, whereas unobservable inputs refer to the use of
predictions and assumptions about the market made by the Company. This distinction brings about a
fair value measurement classification generally as follows:

Level 1: Fairvalue measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asscts
or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
arc obscrvable for the asset or lability, either dircetly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from

prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobscrvable inputs),

Classification requires using observable market data if possible.
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26 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The classificanon of fair value measurements of financial asscts and habilitics measured at fair value 1s
as follows at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021

31 December 2023 1. Level 2. Level 3. Level Total

Financial asscts at fair value through
Other comprehensive income; - - . .
Investments in equity participations (*}) - - 104,561 104,561
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss: - - - -
Financial derivative liabilities - - - -

Total Financial Assets/Liabilities 104,561 104,561

© Financial assets at Gair value through other comprehensive income prescoted at 3, level includes Gair values

ol ecquily shares whose fair value has been determined by independent valuation institulions.

31 December 2022 1. Level 2. Level 3. Level Total

Financial assets at fair value through
Other comprehensive income: - - - -
Investments in equity participations (*) - - 46,781 46,781
Financial asscts at fair valuc through

profit or loss: - - - -
Financial derivative liabilities - - - -

Total Financial Assets/Liabilities 46,781 46,781

) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income presented at 3. level includes fair values

of equity sharcs whose fair value has been determined by independent valuation institutions.

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Balance at the beginning of the period 46,781 26,434
Cash capital increase during the period 6,533 2,280
Total gains for the period recognized under equity 51,247 18,067
Balance at the end of the period 104,561 46,781

27 - OTHER EXPLANATIONS

Information about fees regarding the services received by the Company from the Independent Auditor:

31 Decembe 2023 31 December 2022

Independent audit fee for the reporting pericd 524 203
Total 524 203

28 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (BRSA); announced that, in accordance with the
Board decision dated January 11, 2024, banks and financial leasing, factoring, financing, savings
financing, and asset management companies will start implementing inflation accounting as of January
1, 2025,
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